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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company’)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirn that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
aspects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016 (the “Year”) to all shareholders.

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

In 2016, China’s economy expanded by 6.7%,
representing its slowest growth rate in 26 years. Domestic
mobile phone shipments reached 559.7 million units,
increased by 8% in 2016, an obvious slow down as
against the year-over-year growth in 2015. In view of the
current domestic mobile phone market is becoming
saturated, the Group took advantages of its own
procurement advantage to seek opportunities and
maintain profitability under the challenging environment.

The Company is principally engaged in the trading of
electronics display components, namely thin film transistor
liquid crystal display (“TFT-LCD”) panels, driver integrated
circuits and polarisers, which are the major display
components applied on mobile phones. The sales of TFT-
LCD panels and modules continued to serve as a key
revenue driver of the Group, which accounted for 91% of
the Group’s total revenue during 2016. During the Year,
major Korea’s display panel maker closing down some of
its liquid crystal display panel production lines, which led
to a tightened supply of panels. The Group benefited from
the increase in prices of display panels and improved its
profit margin.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Virtual reality (“VR”) market in China has experienced a
roller-coaster ride in 2016, with a strong growth at the
beginning of the year and slowed down towards the end
of the year. Due to the lack of exciting contents and the
immature augmented reality (“AR”) and VR ecosystem, the
industry performance lagged behind expectation.
Notwithstanding the weak industry performance, with the
Group’s efforts throughout the vyear, it started realizing
returns in the optics products segment. Meanwhile, the
Group has established its own brand of VR/AR products.
We are glad to launch our automotive head-up display
device and VR entertainment headset on an electronic
commerce platform, marking a milestone on the Group’s
path to the VR and AR market.

During the Year, consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$90,729,000. Excluding the non-recurring items of gain
on disposal of subsidiaries and compensation gain arising
from profit guarantee, consolidated profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$43,010,000, representing an increase of
55% year-on-year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK1.0
cent per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2016 subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

OUTLOOK

We are aware of the challenges in the business
environment in the foreseeable future. Along with the
deceleration of mobile phone market growth and
maturation of related technology development, mobile
phone component market will be very competitive and
profit margin will be under pressure. As for the optics
products business, it is expected that next hot wave in
the VR/AR market will come as content support and
associated software become mature. The Group will keep
a close watch on the new applications of related
technologies in readiness for the upcoming wave in the
VR/AR market.
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With the Group’s ample industry experience accumulated
over years, good relationships with suppliers and
customers, as well as its strong financial position, we
believe the Group can sustain its competitive edges to
deal with all the challenges ahead.

APPRECIATION

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to extend my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, business partners and
customers for their constant support and trust over the
years. | am also proud of having the excellent and
professional management team and staff members with
their considerable contributions and dedication. | look
forward to a brighter future of business development with
the commitment from all of the aforementioned.

Cheng Wai Tak
Chairman
Perfect Optronics Limited

Hong Kong
20 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®E DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is
principally engaged in the trading of display components
of electronics, which are the major display components
applied on mobile phones. In addition, it is also engaged
in the development and sale of optics products and
related electronic components. The Group also processes
some of the products which it trades.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”), as
a result of major display panel makers in Korea closing
down some of its liquid crystal display panel production
lines, the display panel market saw a tightened supply
during the Year. This also narrowed down the total sales
volume of the Group’s display products and affected the
revenue of the Group. Total revenue of the Group during
the Year amounted to approximately HK$1,149,998,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 10% year-on-
year. Despite the decrease of revenue, the Group was
able to trade related display components at a more
favorable price and enhanced its profit margin. With the
beneficial business environment and flexible marketing
strategies, the Group managed to achieve delightful
results in 2016.

During the Year, the Group achieved significant increase in
profit as compared with the previous year, mainly
attributable to the improved profit margin, increase in profit
contribution from the Group’s optics products segment
and non-recurring items of gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and gain on profit guarantee. Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$90,729,000, up by more than two-
fold as compared with the previous year. Excluding the
non-recurring items of gain on disposal of subsidiaries
and gain on profit guarantee, profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$43,010,000, up by approximately 55% year-on-year.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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Display products

The Group recorded approximately HK$1,123,950,000 of
revenue from its display products segment during the
Year, which decreased by approximately 12% vyear-on-
year. As affected by tightened supply in the market, sales
of thin film transistor liquid crystal display (“TFT-LCD”)
panels and modules amounted to approximately
HK$1,051,095,000 during the Year, slightly decreased by
approximately 2%. For other products such as driver
integrated circuits (“ICs”) and polarisers, considering the
intense price competition in the driver ICs and polarisers
markets, the Group focused on more profitable products
which led to a significant drop in revenue from driver ICs
and polarisers. Revenue from driver ICs and polarisers
amounted to approximately HK$58,032,000 (2015:
HK$156,180,000) and HK$7,871,000 (2015:
HK$31,436,000) respectively during the Year.

Although there was a drop in revenue, the Group
succeeded in improving its profit thanks to the promising
performance of its major segment of display products
during the Year. Because of the tightened supply in the
market, prices of display panels that the Group trades
surged significantly during the Year, which provided a
favourable environment for the Group to enhance its
results.

Optics-related products

Through the acquisition of Perfect Shiny Technology
Limited (“Perfect Shiny”) and its subsidiaries (“Perfect
Shiny Group”) in 2015, which is principally engaged in the
design, development and sale of applied optics-related
products (“Optics Products”), the Group has diversified its
business into the applied Optics Products market. During
the Year, revenue for Optics Products segment amounted
to approximately HK$26,048,000 (2015: HK$1,199,000),
representing a significant increase as compared to the
relatively low base in 2015.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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EEEFN®R DM

The industry performance of Optics Products for the Year
was weaker than expected due to limited content and an
immature augmented reality (“AR”) and virtual reality (“VR”)
ecosystem. Nevertheless, the Group has taken advantage
of its technology and business network, supplied Optics
Products related components and launched its self-
developed products during the Year which contributed
profit to the Group. Perfect Shiny Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited was established during the Year as an
effort of the Group to expand its development in the
Optics Products market in the PRC. Certain of the
Group’s self-developed Optics Products, such as
automotive head-up display (“HUD”) devices and VR
entertainment headsets were also recently launched on an
electronic commerce platform in the PRC for sale.

For the Year, consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of Perfect Shiny amounted to approximately
HK$35,659,000 (2015: loss of HK$3,892,000). As the total
sum of audited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of Perfect Shiny for the two financial years ended
31 December 2016 was not up to the amount of the profit
guarantee of HK$34,000,000 and resulted in a shortfall of
approximately HK$2,233,000, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (“Mr.
Cheng”), as vendor, has to pay the Group the
compensation amount of approximately HK$21,238,000,
partly by setting off against the amount due under a
promissory note issued by the Group and partly in cash,
which is expected to be settled on or before 31 March
2017.

During the Year, considering the mature and essential
technology that the Group has already mastered for the
development of its self-developed Optics Products, as well
as the unsatisfactory performance of and further expenses
to be incurred by Shinyoptics Corporation (“Shinyoptics”),
the Group disposed of Morning Beauty Developments
Limited which held approximately 50.14% of the issued
share capital of Shinyoptics. Shinyoptics is principally
engaged in the design, development, production and sale
of micro-projector optical engines. The gain arising from
the disposal of subsidiaries was included in the
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of Perfect
Shiny for the Year. It is considered that the disposal is a
good opportunity to realise the Group’s investments in the
business of developing and researching micro-projector
optical engines, which enhances the cash resources of the
Group for better investment opportunities as and when
they arise.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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Prospects

Looking ahead, due to the uncertainties in the global and
China’s economy, the prospects for the Group’s display
products business will become more challenging. It is
expected that the Group will face keener competition and
be impacted by weaker market growth. Facing the
challenging operating environment, the Group will remain
its focus on diversifying its products portfolio, introducing
new suppliers and customers. Nevertheless, the Group’s
display products business is expected to somewhat
benefit from the trend of consumers’ replacement for
high-end smartphones, as well as the increasing
smartphone penetration in developing countries.

As to the Optics Products, the Group will keep updating
its technologies from time to time so that the Group can
maximize its benefits when the AR/VR markets enjoy more
robust growth. The Group believes that as AR and VR
technologies and associated software as well as content
support become mature, consumers’ demand will be
stimulated and the related markets will have a bright
future in the long run.

Facing the challenges and opportunities in the market, the
Group will fully utilise its own competitive edges including
its good relationships with suppliers and clients, advanced
technology knowhow and professional sales team, to
make a quick response to market changes.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Global economic condition

A slowdown in the global economy, including the PRC
economic climate, which has been one of the major
markets for display products, would affect the results of
the Group. A decrease in market demand may put
significant downward pressure on the average selling
prices. Reduced corporate and commercial activities also
has a negative impact on the demand for and prices of
the Group’s products. If the economy continues to grow at
a slower rate, or experiences a prolonged recession, the
Group’s business and results of operations will be
adversely affected.
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Financial risks

The Group’s activities expose to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. Details of which are set out in Note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s financial statements and its notes, which
are included in this report.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 amounted to approximately HK$1,149,998,000, which
decreased by approximately 10% as compared to
approximately HK$1,274,174,000 in 2015. The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to the decrease in sales of
display products segment, including TFT-LCD panels,
driver ICs and polarisers, which overrode the increase in
revenue from optics products segment during the Year.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales during the Year primarily consisted of
purchase costs, processing and subcontracting charges,
scrap loss, provision for obsolete inventories,
transportation charges and other direct costs. The
Group’s cost of sales decreased by approximately 12%
from approximately HK$1,177,343,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015 to approximately HK$1,037,263,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016, which was mainly due
to the decrease in purchase costs associated with the
decrease in revenue.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The increase in the Group’s gross profit margin from 7.6%
in 2015 to 9.8% in 2016 offset the effect of decrease in
revenue during the Year and led to the increase of the
Group’s gross profit amount for the Year by
approximately 16% to approximately HK$112,735,000 as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2015. The
increase in the prices of display panels during the Year
contributed to the increase in overall gross profit margin.

Other gains/(losses), net

Net other gains of approximately HK$47,067,000 was
recorded during the Year (2015: net losses of
HK$1,749,000). The balance mainly comprised the gain on
disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$26,481,000,
gain on profit guarantee of approximately HK$21,238,000,
net with exchange losses incurred during the Year.

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses slightly
increased by approximately 2% from approximately
HK$16,354,000 in 2015 to approximately HK$16,636,000
in 2016, mainly due to the increase in rental and
promotion expenses incurred for the Group’s optics
products, which offset the decrease in staff costs
attributable to the decrease in average headcount.

General and administrative expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$37,729,000,
representing an approximately 2% increase as compared
with 2015 of approximately HK$37,123,000. The increase
in general and administrative expenses was mainly due to
the increase in professional fees incurred during the Year,
including the expenses related to the application for
transfer of listing of the Company’s shares from GEM to
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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EMNRERNR

REFNEMNER - T—AFN76% LLAE"T
—NFR8% W TFANRAR DR E
SAFEAEBZEN ¢ERBE-_ZT—AF+
ZA=Z+—HLEFEENHI6EN =4
112,735,000 7T ° AN F [E AR E R E & £ FH R
7 B BE T A R g0 -

Hitgg s/ (B58) F8E

NEEE K18 #947,067,0008 LY Eth W 25 7558 (=
?—ﬂim@ﬁ%%v&mm%ﬁ)%%%;
T e IE N EH B A R U = 426,481,000/ 7T
FIR B U 25 4921,238,000/8 7T + 1% Kﬁﬁ?i
HIE 5 E 1R -

DHEREERX
AEENDIHENEER T EMILIING2% - B
T — REHH16,354,0008 T E T — N EH

#116,636,0008 7T * TEHMAAEE N EERAN
EEMMERERMAEM REETFHE
TABURLDEBHEHBTRARD -

—RRITHEX

REEARFE 2 — M R1TEF 437,729,000
70 BN & = F — R 4 4937,123,0007% 7t 3 1 4J
2% °c —MRITHAS 2 EBIEFEZHNAQR[AR
FEEXEBREIN  BERBBEAARKMDA
BORAIERERETR ETAEANR@AE
}Eﬁ °
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Research and development expenses

The Group’s research and development (“R&D”) expenses
amounted to approximately HK$6,559,000 in 2016,
representing an approximately 29% decrease as
compared with 2015 of approximately HK$9,256,000. The
decrease was mainly due to the fact that Shinyoptics,
which engages in R&D of optical engines, was disposed
of and the optics products developed by the Group were
approaching their completion stage during the Year such
that less R&D costs were incurred.

Finance costs, net

Net finance costs of the Group during the Year amounted
to approximately HK$1,348,000 (2015: HK$322,000),
representing an increase of approximately 319% as
compared with 2015. Such increase was due to the
decrease in interest income attributable to the decrease in
Renminbi fixed deposits; and the increase in factoring
charges.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense of the Group during the Year
primarily represents income tax incurred in Hong Kong.
The increase in income tax expense was mainly due to
the increase in assessable profits for Hong Kong profits
tax during the Year. The non-taxable gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and gain on profit guarantee recorded during
the Year lowered the Group’s effective tax rate to 9.4%
(2015: 20.6%).

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$90,729,000,
representing an increase of approximately 227% as
compared with 2015 of approximately HK$27,732,000.
Excluding the non-recurring items of gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and gain on profit guarantee, profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$43,010,000, representing an increase
of approximately 55% as compared with 2015, which was
mainly attributable to the improvement in gross profit
margin of display panels and increase in profit contribution
from optics products segment during the Year.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

The financial key performance indicators are analysed as

follows:
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FTEUBRAEER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

Note 2016

BT 5E —E-—RE
HK$'000
FEx

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue
Gross profit margin (%)

Earnings before interest, income tax,
depreciation and amortisation

(“EBITDA”)
EBITDA margin (%)

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company

Return on total assets (%)

Return on shareholders’ equity (%)

Basic earnings per share

(HK cents)

MBRE
WA
EFE (%)

BRAS - EH - B
R GH AT =
([EBITDAI)

EBITDA (%)

FEME
ARRRHEFAA
FE A5 78

BEEDHRE (%)

PR 5 [ 4R K (%)

BREREN
(&AL

1,149,998
9.8%

(i) 53,803

(i 47%

88,335
90,729

(i) 17.6%

(iv) 25.9%

HK6.12 cents
6.127 1l

TBMBRAEEOMOT

Percentage change

2015 Increase/(decrease)

BALLEE

—E-RE #m,/ Ca )
HK$'000
FRET

1,274,174 (10)%

7.6% 2.2 percentage points

221887 &

34,869 54%

2.7% 2.0 percentage points

2088 &

25,442 247%

27,732 227%

51% 12.5 percentage points

125EE DB

10.5% 15.4 percentage points

15.41E B 7 #

HK1.87 cents 227%

1.8778 11l

BExxXEFRLDA 2016 FK
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As at 31 December

W+=ZA=+—-H
Percentage change
Note 2016 2015 Increase/(decrease)
BALLES
o & = LN —T-AF #m,/ Ca )
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS TENKIEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 174,126 127,953 36%
Net current assets MEEEFE 312,110 240,752 30%
Total assets EERE 502,122 496,002 1%
Bank borrowings RITEN = 31,200 (100)%
Total liabilities BEBE 152,163 216,273 30)%
Equity attributable to equity holders ARG EZHE A 349,959 264,481 32%
of the Company JE{h %
Total equity B 349,959 279,729 25%
Current ratio (times) BN & (f5) v) 3.1 times 2.2 times 0.9 times
311% 221& 091
Quick ratio (times) RE L E(fF) (vi) 2.0 times 1.8 times 0.2 times
2.01% 1.8 0.21%
Gearing ratio (%) EXRABBHE(%) (vii) 0% 11.2% (11.2) percentage points
11.2EE 2
Debt-to-asset ratio (%) BEEELE (%) (viii) 0% 6.3% (6.3) percentage points
6.3)EEH
Notes: a7t -
(i) EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2016 excludes non- () HE-—T—ANEt+-A=+—BIE£Z ZEBITDATA
recurring items of gain on disposal of subsidiaries of FE & BB A 5 Uk 25 4926,481,00058 7T [ 3% FIl R 2%
approximately HK$26,481,000 and gain on profit guarantee of 25 #921,238,0007% 7T 7 JEL B TER

approximately HK$21,238,000

(ii) EBITDA margin = EBITDA/Revenue (ii) EBITDAZ =EBITDA, ¥ A
(iii) Return on total assets = Profit for the year/Total assets (iii) MEERME=FENE  EEHLE

(iv) Return on shareholders’ equity = Profit attributable to equity holders (iv) REERORER-ANT R EEAEGENE A

of the Company/Equity attributable to equity holders of the TR A ATEERES

Company
(v) Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities W) R ER=GEEE /e AR
(vi) Quick ratio = (Current assets — Inventories)/Current liabilities i) BB R REEE — )/ RHPAE
(i) Gearing ratio = Total interest-bearing debt/Total equity (vii) BRABBH Rt B EISEE 508
(vii) ~ Debt-to-asset ratio = Total interest-bearing debt/Total assets wii) BEEELE-:HBEFHEE LELE
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s funds are principally used to finance working
capital, and the growth and expansion of the Group’s
operations and sales network. The Group’s principal
sources of funds are cash generated from operations and
bank borrowings. An analysis of the Group’s bank
deposits, bank balances and cash is as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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RBESRUHKER

AEENECTEZRERNZEES KA
SEZENHERBNERRERREHAES -
AEETZNESRBERELEENRERIR
TER - XEEBRTER RTGEHREESZ
DT

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Total bank deposits, bank balances RITTFE  BITHEH
and cash RE & B 198,828 166,024
Less: Restricted bank deposits included in B AARBEERN
current assets ZERHEITER (24,702) (20,316)
Fixed deposits with original maturity [REIEAE 2 B = {6 A
date more than three months ZEHER — (17,755)
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 174,126 127,953

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank deposits, bank
balances and cash are denominated in the following
currencies:

AEBENRITESR RITEHKLRSHEEE
TIATN S K 5T 1E

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8”
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—HRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FA&TT
United States dollars ETT 137,819 122,619
Hong Kong dollars BT 55,135 6,966
Renminbi AR #& 4,847 22197
New Taiwan dollars ek 1,027 14,242
198,828 166,024

BZ%XEBEREALA 2016 £3H 17
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The Group has no bank borrowings as at 31 December
2016. The Group’s bank borrowings as at 31 December
2015 comprised bank loans of approximately
HK$31,200,000. The scheduled repayment date of the
Group’s bank borrowings, as set out in the loan
agreements and without considering the effect of any
repayment on demand clauses were as follows:

$‘§@ T—ARNF+_A=+—BULERTE
cHATE—RAFE+-_A=+—H AEEHE
fETT1%¥K@%§E/_§y’Z’JS1 200,000 7T « B
BEAHATEEREREERRFENLE
BESRITERMFTSEERBOT :

As at 31 December

Within 1 year 1A

R+=—HA=+—8
2016 2015
—E-RF e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
— 31,200

As at 31 December 2015, all the Group’s bank borrowings
were fixed interest rate loans denominated in United
States dollars.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s unutilised banking

facilities restricted for trade finance purposes amounted to
approximately HK$145.0 million (2015: HK$194.1 million).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital of the Company only comprises ordinary
shares. There has been no change in the capital structure
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the year.

The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring on an ongoing basis with reference to the
financial position of the debtors, past experience and
other factors. The Group performs regular credit
evaluations of its major customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the management closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position and maintains sufficient cash and an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to settle
the payables of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s management policies, working environment,
career prospects and employees’ benefits have
contributed to building a good employee relations and
employee retention of the Group. The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages commensurate with
industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
employees including medical benefits, social insurance,
provident funds, bonuses and a share option scheme. The
management regularly reviews its employee’s remuneration
packages to ensure they are up to prevailing market
standard.

As at 31 December 2016, the employee headcount of the
Group was 114 (2015: 145) and the total staff costs,
including directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$34,356,000 during the vyear (2015:
HK$38,180,000).
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AEER2EZEHBANPBARR  BELE R
HR=MmGEETEE  BRENBEEE
R - AEBEEHRETERPETEEN
B-REERDESRR EEBESETRER
AEENRBESKAARTERARERITR
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The Group has established long term business
relationships with its major suppliers for over ten years.
The Group has entered into long term supply framework
agreements with these suppliers. The Group will endeavor
to maintain its established relationship with these existing
suppliers.

The Group’s customers are mainly TFT-LCD module
manufacturers based in the PRC. The Group has a well-
established business relationship with these customers
and has gained recognition in the TFT-LCD panel industry
in the PRC.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had pledged its bank
deposits of approximately HK$24,702,000 (2015:
HK$20,316,000) to certain banks in Hong Kong to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in United States dollars, Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and New Taiwan dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the Board will continuously monitor the
related foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments (2015: Nil).
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DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was declared (2015: Nil) during the
year. The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.0 cent (2015: HKO0.5 cent) per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2016 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 17 May 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Save as the Group’s investment in certain preferred
shares of Mobvoi Inc., the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other
company as at 31 December 2016.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 24
January 2014 (the “Prospectus”), the Group did not have
other plans for material investments and capital assets as
at 31 December 2016.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
disposed of the entire equity interest of Morning Beauty
Developments Limited which held approximately 50.14%
equity interest in Shinyoptics Corporation.

Save as disclosed, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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COMPARISON BETWEEN FUTURE PLANS
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

A comparison of the Group’s business plan as set out in
the Prospectus with actual business progress for the
period from 14 January 2014 (being the Latest Practicable
Date as defined in the Prospectus) to 31 December 2016
(the “Review Period”) is set out below. Capitalised terms
used herein shall have the same meanings as those
defined in the Prospectus unless the content requires
otherwise.

Business objectives for the Review Period

EEBAENEXEER

ARFEEEBEBER 2R

TXHIBREEMBEEARASEEH TN
F-ATHBERRERAREZZRRERA
TEHMZ-_Z—RF+A=1t—HHR(DE
HEDNEBASEERERER LT - K
XERBREIN AERAAZAZERKE
RAREEREHERRE -

Actual Business Progress for the Review Period

EESAENERXEER

(@) Establishment or acquisition of panel processing plants in the PRC to expand our business vertically

RABRISEWNEERNMIBAEERERES

° Perform technology and capacity forecast
and planning
EITHE MR EsLTE R &R E

o Perform due diligence studies on target
panel processing plant(s) or rules and
compliance of operating panel processing
plant(s) in the PRC
HEREARNMIBEETEBREEXHASE
PEKLER M IHENRRERER

° Identify potential equipment supplier and
carrying out evaluation

e BeReHER &G

° Confirm expansion plan for cutting
processing plant

fE 524 & 00 TR 5 10 9% f A &)

° Commence acquisition or establishment of
cutting processing plant

el FE LS B =X RS2 1) B N TR B
o Purchase equipment (if establish cutting
processing plant)

8 B 2R B (i B SZ 8D E 0 TR B

° Recruit staff
REST
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Technology and capacity forecast and
planning had been performed
TR R ERTERKRE

A potential existing panel processing plant
had been identified and related due
diligence work had commenced

ERGHEEANTHNRAERMIES -
VRAEEEBREETIF

The Group was identifying potential
equipment supplier

AEBELENEELERBEHRER

The Group had decided to expand through
acquisition of panel processing plant

AEEDREZBEBERINTHEER



Business objectives for the Review Period

EEBENELEER

° Perform trail run for cutting processing

plant
PEMIHERAAE

° Commence acquisition or establishment of

slimming processing plant(s)

5 B W BB B BB AL DN TR 5

° Purchase equipment (if establish slimming

processing plant)

BERE AR OEMIEE)

° Purchase additional equipment for the

cutting processing plant
RYEMIKREBEEREINR

° Commence full operation of cutting

processing plant(s)
PIEI AN L% 5 R i 2 & 1

° Perform trial run for slimming processing

plant
SEAL I TR P R B ol E

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Actual Business Progress for the Review Period

EEBENERERER

(b) Expansion of our sales support team in the PRC to provide high quality services to our customers

BRAPEEEXEER AFEFRABERE

° Recruit staff
BEST

° Continue to recruit staff if necessary

FENEEI(WEZ

° Arrange training to staff
ZHE T HEI

° Organise marketing activities

EEMSHERELTD

The Group had recruited additional sales and
engineering staff to strengthen its sales
support team in the PRC
AEECDEFRIMEERTIZEABNARIEA
7 B Y 8 6 S IR B B

Relevant training activities had been provided
to new and existing staff
ERMABRNMAEGETRHEMEABZIED

The Group had continuously organised
various marketing activities to promote sales
and strengthen its market position
AEECHBEBRSZEMSHERGBINRE
66 30 058 B 5 M AL

BXXEBEHER®XAF 2016 F ;|
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Business objectives for the Review Period

EEBENELEER

EEBENERERER

() Expansion of our product portfolio to strengthen our product offerings

CEEmAS MEEMRME

° Explore new products and suppliers °

FAHERREERD

° Evaluate new products and perform due °
diligence on new supplier if necessary

FHEHEmREFHERETEREE (D

== g5
™ 2

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company offered 330,000,000 shares for subscription
in 2014 (the “Placing”). The net
proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$76
million. During the Review Period, the net proceeds from
the Placing had been applied as follows:

by way of placing

Actual Business Progress for the Review Period

The Group had introduced new products and

new suppliers

AEECSIAMER LA HEER

Due diligence works on new suppliers had

been performed

EHHMEEEETRREL

FRrERERZE

330

/8 £k
(SN

ARAR-_ZTE-—HNFEFEEETARE

,000,000f% B 7 LA 3R BB ([EC B 1) » BL & PR

Planned use of
proceeds as
stated in the

T8 F 58 4976,000,000/8 7T - PAEIEAERRE » B2
EMESREFEECANTISE:

Actual use of

Prospectus proceeds during
during the the Review
Review Period Period
BREEZHT e RE
FEREREE RE RS
H B R S8 A& WERRAZR
HK$’'million HK$’million
BEETT BEETT
Establishment or acquisition of i slE = )
panel processing plants in the PRC WHEERINIKE
to expand business vertically NEEERER 40 —
Repayment of bank loans BERITER 17 17
Expansion of sales support team A F
in the PRC to provide HE IR E R
high quality services to customers MEFPRMEERE 8 8
Expansion of product portfolio EEEMMEE
to strengthen product offerings hnog 2 o 4k e 4 4
General working capital —REEED 7 7
76 36
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Notes: Hiat -

The business objectives as stated in the Prospectus were based on the HRERMMMNESEZHERNAEBERL AR SEEY
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group at the — FRRMRIEHAREMET @ MABRBENRETSEREE
time of preparing the Prospectus. The uses of proceeds were applied in FEA -

accordance with the actual development of the market:

AEERYE—MEEANTHREERNTIEE I
ERFAEFEERESTE - ENPERHLEERRT
A AKBEEEAERERRKEER ERNE

1. The Group had identified a potential existing panel processing plant 1.
and related due diligence work had commenced. In view of the
uncertainty of recent economic conditions in the PRC, the

management of the Group is taking a prudent approach in making
progress on the possible acquisition. Negotiations with the vendor
of the target plant are still in progress. At the same time, the

BEG - DERHFEE T OERINARETT - LitF
B AEBEEERYEEMEIRNIRKENKERB

-

Group is trying to identify other targets of panel processing plants
to acquire.

RIB-RET A=+ —HORTHEFIRFED
FABRBRITEGEFN

2. The remaining net proceeds as at 31 December 2016 had been 2.
placed on interest-bearing deposits in banks in Hong Kong.

EZxEARELE 2016 8 25
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Corporate Governance Report

PEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, save as
set out below, the Company has adopted the principles
and the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
CG Code, except the deviation as disclosed under the
section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
below.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT
FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company during the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board during
the year and up to the date of this annual report was as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing

Mr. Tse Ka Wing

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu

Mr. Li Shui Yan

The biographical details of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 50 to
52 of this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries; setting
objectives and business development plans; monitoring the
performance of the senior management; and assuming
responsibility for corporate governance. The management,
under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the Company’s
operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure
effective performance of the Board’s responsibilities.

The management provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates in accordance with the code provision
CA1.2 of the CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. All minutes of
the Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail of
the matters considered by the Board and the decisions
made.

Four regular board meetings were held during the year. Its
composition and the attendance of individual Directors at
these board meetings were as follows:

EENERBENEE

ARBEHRARBDEIMIHEZTRSRER
ERDWTMEZETY REFRSABER

HEENEERR RREEHESFiRT —
/N

ESREH

ERAB A AARRREBEZ A ANATET A

HEmETERTANEES  FEESE S
SR ARARSEFREE EEROERY
SR -

EEENFRETHREHESE - HXE LE
NEFHhFEESTEERIBRAMA T

Number of

regular board

meetings

Name attended/held

b BT

EHHNESES

A CEVS

Executive Directors: HiTEE:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman) B E L () 4/4

Mr. Liu Ka Wing PRRKE 4/4

Mr. Tse Ka Wing BN 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors: BUIHHITESE -

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John HEEBEE 4/4

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu HEEBLE 4/4

Mr. Li Shui Yan I B LA 4/4
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Except for the service contract with Mr. Tse Ka Wing,
which commenced on 26 March 2015, each of the
executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on the 7 February 2014, the listing date of
the shares of the Company (the “Listing Date”) and has
renewed for another term of three years commencing on
7 February 2017. Either party has the right to give not less
than three months’ written notice to terminate the
respective service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on the Listing
Date and has renewed for another term of three years
commencing on 7 February 2017.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by the shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment. By virtue of
article 112 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board shall have power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director but the
number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the
shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to
article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not 3 or
a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated
office.

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Tse Ka Wing and Mr. Li Shui Yan will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors representing more
than one-third of the Board and with at least one of
whom having appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the GEM Listing Rules for the year.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Under the current management structure of the Company,
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (“Mr. Cheng”) is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. With Mr. Cheng’s extensive
experience in the industry, the Board believes that vesting
the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same person would provide the Company with strong
and consistent leadership, allow for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies, and would be beneficial to the business
prospects and management of the Group.

Although Mr. Cheng performs both the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer, the division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is
clearly established. In general, the Chairman is responsible
for supervising the functions and performance of the
Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the management of the business of the Group. The two
roles are performed by Mr. Cheng distinctly. The Board
also considers that the current management structure
does not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company
given the appropriate delegation of the power of the
Board and the effective functions of the independent non-
executive Directors. However, it is the long-term objective
of the Company to have these two roles performed by
separate individuals when suitable candidates are
identified.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of
reference, three board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties. The
written terms of reference for each Board committee are
in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and
code provision C.3 of the CG Code. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, who has the
appropriate accounting and financial related management
expertise and serves as the chairman of the audit
committee, Mr. Wong Chi Chiu and Mr. Li Shui Yan.

The primary duties of the audit committee are (but
without limitation) to assist the Board in providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting process, internal control and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
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The audit committee held four meetings during the year,. BZZE@RFERNLEBTNIEHE HEKER {
lts composition and attendance of individual members at %lJﬁJZE\EQ%%%’fZ?E@@E%ZMV}iﬁ
these audit committee meetings are as follows:
Number of
audit committee
meetings
Members of the audit committee attended/held
HEBITH
EREES
ERZEEENRE CE VS
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John EEBEE 4/4
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu HEEBLE 4/4
Mr. Li Shui Yan Fin B L4 4/4
During the vyear, the audit committee reviewed the RFAN BEBREZECEHNARAZFEIHBHR

Company’s annual financial statements, annual results
announcement, interim and quarterly announcements and
reports; discussed and reviewed the internal control and
risk management systems of the Group; reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function; met
with the independent external auditors and reviewed
reports from the independent external auditors regarding
their audit on annual financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1 of the CG Code. The
remuneration committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, who serves as the
chairman of the remuneration committee, Mr. Cheng Wai
Tak and Mr. Wong Yik Chung John.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Directors on the policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (i) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; (iiij reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Directors from time to time.
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During the year, one remuneration committee meeting was
held for, inter alia, reviewing the policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management. The
remuneration committee satisfied the existing arrangement
and there was no recommendation to the Board on
change of such policy and structure. All the members of
the remuneration committee, including Mr. Wong Chi Chiu,
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Mr. Wong Yik Chung John,
attended that meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to
an annual adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the
remuneration committee and be determined at the
discretion of the Board. The Company’s policy concerning
the remuneration of the Directors is that the amount of
remuneration is determined by reference to the relevant
Director’'s experience, responsibilities, workload and the
time devoted to the Group. The Group has adopted
incentive bonus schemes and continues to maintain these
schemes, seeking to align the financial well-being of the
Group with that of the employees, and to retain the
Directors and staff of high caliber.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision A.5 of the CG Code. The
nomination committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, who serves as the
chairman of the nomination committee, Mr. Mr. Wong Yik
Chung John and Mr. Li Shui Yan.

The primary function of the nomination committee
includes making recommendations to the Board to fill
vacancies on the same, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing of the
structure, size and composition of the Board.
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During the year, one nomination committee meeting was
held for, inter alia, reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and board diversity policy as
well as discussing matters regarding the retirement and
re-election of Directors and succession planning for
directors and assesses the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. All the members of the
nomination committee, including Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr.
Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Li Shui Yan, attended that
meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including (but not
limited to) gender, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and educational background.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to
implement the Diversity Policy and review such objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and
ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. At present, the Board has not set any
measurable objectives.

The nomination committee will review the Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried
out by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of
reference adopted by the Board, which include (a) develop
and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management of the Company and its subsidiaries; (c)
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) review
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the corporate governance report of the
Company required to be prepared pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules; and (f) consider, review and decide any
other topics, as authorised by the Board.

During the year, the Board reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

During the year, the Company provided training materials
for all the Directors to keep them abreast of the latest
development of legal, regulatory and corporate
governance. The Company has received the records of
training from all Directors.

The Group, together with its compliance adviser and legal
advisers, continuously update the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for each
financial period to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their
financial reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s
report attached to the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016 in this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration
paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided is set out below:
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Services rendered paid/payable
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Audit services Eit % 1,680
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control system in
order to safeguard the Group’s assets and investments
and the shareholders’ interest. The Board oversees the
overall risk management of the Group and endeavors to
identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. Such
internal control systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy set
out the process of identification, evaluation and
management of the principal risks affecting the business.
Each division is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its divisions, identify and assess the
principal risks on a quarterly basis with mitigation plans to
manage those risks. The management is responsible for
overseeing the risk management and internal control
activities of the Group, quarterly meetings with each
divisions to ensure principal risks are properly managed,
and new or changing risks are identified and
documented. Lastly, the Board is responsible for reviewing
and approving the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Group’s risk management and internal controls.

The risk management framework, coupled with the
Group’s internal controls, ensures that the risks associated
with different divisions are effectively controlled in line with
the Group’s risk appetite.

The risk assessment report was submitted to the audit
committee and the Board for review.

The Group does not have an internal audit function within
the Group. Nevertheless the Company engaged an
external consultant, CT Partners Consultants Limited to
carry out internal audit function and had during the year
conducted review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The review
covering, inter alia, the inventory cycle on trading of
display products and optics products, and make
recommendations for improvement and strengthening of
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internal control system. The internal control review report
was submitted to the audit committee and the Board for
review. The audit committee has requested the
management to follow up the recommendations of the
external consultant to remedy the control issues identified
or to further improve the internal control system.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of accounting
and financial reporting function and the Board has
reached the conclusion that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems were in place and effective.
The Board will review and assess the risk management
and internal control systems at least once a year. The
Company has established a whistle-blowing policy and
system for employees of the Group to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters. No significant areas of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance,
controls and risk management of the Group have been
identified.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has adopted a policy on
disclosure of inside information, with an aim to ensure that
the insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement and
fulfill the disclosure obligation of the inside information.
The policy describes clearly the decision trees to
distinguish inside information and necessary actions.
Employees and other relevant parties are required to keep
inside information in strict confidential. Once the inside
information needs disclosure, the manner must be equal,
truly and effective.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and
investors with high standards of disclosure and financial
transparency. The Board is committed to provide clear
and detailed information of the Group to its shareholders
in a timely manner and on a regular basis, through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the Company’s
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and other
members of the respective committees are available to
answer questions of the shareholders at the general
meeting. The Company recognises the importance of
maintaining on-going communications with the
shareholders and encourages them to attend general
meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and
senior management.

The Company maintains a website at
http://www.perfect-optronics.com where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
useful information are posted and available for access by
the public investors.

2016 General meetings

At the annual general meeting held in 2016, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman in respect of
each separate issue, including re-election of directors and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results
of the poll in the manner prescribed under the GEM
Listing Rules. The respective chairman of the Board, audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee had attended the annual general meeting held
in 2016 to ensure effective communication with
shareholders. All the Directors had attended the annual
general meeting held in 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and to put forward
proposal at general meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the
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Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Article 113 of the articles of association of the Company
provides that no person other than a retiring Director,
shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registration office. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholders of the
Company to propose a person for election as director is
posted on the Company’s website.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
by mail to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board’s purview to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to
the Chief Executive Officer.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Tse Ka Wing (“Mr. Tse”), is an
employee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters. The
biographical details of Mr. Tse are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

During the year, Mr. Tse has undertaken not less than 15

hours of relevant professional training in accordance with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERHRSE

INTRODUCTION

Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) reaffirms its
commitment towards sustainability with the publication of
its Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
2016. This report is prepared in compliance with the
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

This report includes data and information in the Group,
supplementing our annual report and disclosing our
performance and progress on ESG issues from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2016.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the integrity of
the ESG Report and to the best of its knowledge this report
addresses all material issues and fairly presents the ESG
performance of the Company and its impacts. The Board
confirms that it has reviewed and approved the report.

ESG MANAGEMENT

For over a decade of development, the Group has
become one of the leading trading companies of display
components used in mobile phones in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) market.

Our business relies on the success of supply chain
management. We understand that our major suppliers are
sustainable and with integrity. Meanwhile, we encourage
our suppliers to commit to making environmental, health
and safety considerations a priority. We review if the
suppliers comply with our Company’s standard and the
relevant laws and regulations. The Group has successfully
established a stable and long-term business relationships
with green and socially responsible suppliers for over ten
years and we are determined to maintain it in the future.
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BE HERERRSE

In addition to maintaining a green supply chain, we also
strive to promote sustainability in our office. We have
implemented an initiative concerning energy saving, office
tidiness and harmony to encourage our employees to
participate in creating a greener office. We treasure our
human capital and, therefore, we adopt good industry
practice for them and ensure all the employees were
being respected, independent of their cultural background
and gender. In 2016, we continued to provide safe and
high quality products to our customers and we hope that
our business could create positive impacts to the society.
We encourage our employees to share this value and
actively participate in charitable activities.

We appreciate for the support from our stakeholder
groups including employees, suppliers, customers,
investors, regulators, etc, in 2016. Going forward, the
Group will remain vigilant to measure and manage our
environmental and social aspects and continue to strive
for a sustainable business.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Group educates our employees, suppliers and
customers about its commitment to the environment
and promote awareness on environmental issues. We
regularly review this policy to ensure that we are able to
exercise environmental stewardship in our industry.

The major business of the Group is the trading of display
components, in which the Group sources components
from the suppliers and processes some of the products
before sales. The Group is not directly involved in the
production process and hence most of the environmental
impacts are indirect. In 2016, we strictly complied with
environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the
PRC. There were no significant fines and no non-monetary
sanctions for non-compliance with environmental laws and
regulations during the year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Nevertheless, the Group is committed to gradually embed
sustainability into our daily operation and encourage our
suppliers and processing service providers to do the
same. The Group’s environmental management system is
composed of two major components, which are the green
office and green supply chain. With the management
system in place, we address and minimize our direct and
indirect environmental impacts during the operation
process.

The Group’s operation is primarily office-based. We strive
to mitigate our carbon footprint by reducing unnecessary
energy consumption in our office. To encourage our
employees to save energy, our offices implemented a
number of green office initiatives concerning energy
saving, including utilize natural daylight in the office,
promote the use of e-documents, and encourage the set
up of recycling bins in the office.

Managing impact from our Supply Chain

The Group realizes the rising importance of environmental
sustainability and believes a sustainable supply chain will
become one of the critical success factors to our
business operations. We encourage our major display
components suppliers and processing service providers to
commit to making environmental considerations a priority,
including energy conservation, reducing pollutants and
water consumption. Our objective is to strive for a
sustainable supply chain, making sure our product
supplies are stable and high quality.

The Group sources display components from socially
responsible suppliers that have been implementing
sustainable development for years and have complied with
the environmental laws and regulations in locations where
they have operations. With the stable supply of green and
safe products, the Group is able to grow sustainably. Our
major suppliers not only have obtained environmental
management certification in ISO 14001, some have also
verified their greenhouse gas emissions and received
IECQ" Certificate of Conformity for Hazardous Substances
Process Management.

1. International Electrotechnical Commission Quality Assessment
System for Electronic Components (IECQ) is a worldwide approval
and certification system covering the supply of electronic
components and associated materials and assemblies (including
modqules) and processes.
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BE HERERRSE

Going forward, we continue to look for opportunities to
improve our environmental policies and work with our
suppliers to develop innovative technologies to meet rising
expectation of meeting environmental goals.

The processing service providers are key components of
our supply chain, and therefore we have established
various of internal control measures to ensure they meet
our standard and are socially responsible. For all the
processing service providers, we would request them to
provide us with a copy of their business licence, and other
relevant permit and approval for operation. For the
slimming processing service providers, we would require
them to provide a copy of their License for Emission of
Pollutants as the slimming processing plant will generate
pollutants during the process.

The PRC laws require processing service providers to
register with the relevant environmental protection
authority and obtain a special licence before operation. In
addition to assuring our processing service providers are
in compliance with the environmental requirements, the
Group also performs regular site visit to check and
monitor if the processing service providers’ facilities are up
to our required standards in terms of environmental and
quality.

We made request to our processing service providers to
notify us of any correspondences with the relevant
environmental protection authority and they should provide
us with a copy of the written correspondences. These
measures are to ensure that we are keep tracking and
informed of the environmental compliance level of our
processing service providers. We will seek legal advice if
any of our processing service providers violates the
environmental laws or fails to provide service up to our
standard.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We regularly train our employees in environmental
health and safety responsibilities and promote
awareness and accountability on these matters.

The Group complies with the relevant labor laws and
regulations, such as the “Labor Law of the PRC”,
“Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of Laws of Hong
Kong)”, “Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labor”. In 2016, there is no violation of laws and
regulations and no case about child labor was reported in
our Group. New employees are provided with training.
After probation, we sign contracts with them in
accordance with the “Labor Contract Law of the PRC” or
“Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of Laws of Hong
Kong)” and provide them with various fringe benefits to
build a harmonious relation.

Cultivating a Safe and Healthy Workplace

Human capital is our Group’s most valuable asset. Apart
from offering competitive remuneration packages that
match with the industry practice, the Group provides
medical benefits, social insurance, provident funds, and
discretionary bonuses for the employees. Other employee
benefits include basic pension insurance fund,
unemployment insurance fund, basic medical insurance
fund, work-related injury insurance fund and maternity
insurance fund as required by the “Social Insurance Law
of the PRC”. The Group’s management team regularly
reviews the staffs’ remuneration packages to confirm they
reach the prevailing market standard. The Group also
maintains good hygiene standards and a safe working
practice in the offices and warehouses.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and strive to
establish a sound and fair working environment. We will
not consider factors such as gender, cultural background
and race in the recruitment, training and promotion
process. The Group emphasizes the importance of
respecting the employees’ privacy and will not tolerate any
form of harassment. The Group has developed a code of
conduct for employees to reinforce their awareness in this
regard.
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Striving for a Sustainable Supply Chain

A sustainable and reliable supply chain is critical to the
success of the Group, therefore we put efforts in
establishing long term relationship with our suppliers. Until
now, we have established over ten years of business
relationship and entered into long term supply framework
agreements with our major suppliers. For the processing
service providers, we sign contracts with them and review
their performance on a regular basis, ensuring that they
meet our Group’s standard. With a stable supply chain,
our products’ quality is maintained.

We choose our suppliers and processing service providers
with good reputation and integrity. All our suppliers have
to provide evidence that they acquired the necessary
licence or permit for producing products. We would also
ensure there is no forced labor or child labor working in
any of our suppliers’ and processing service providers’
production facilities.

Product responsibility

To promote fair competition and protect the interests of
our suppliers, we emphasize the importance of clean,
probity and corruption-free in the procurement process.
The Group also maintain a high material safety standard in
the procurement process.

In case of any problems found in our products, we will
take it seriously. Our technicians will check the products
and determine whether it should be the responsibility of
the suppliers or the processing service providers. Subject
to the outcome of our negotiations with suppliers or
processing service providers, we will handle the incident
on a case-by-case basis.
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Whistleblowing policy

We emphasize integrity, we promote and cultivate a
honest and professional corporate culture. The Group set
up an anti-corruption management system to prevent and
handle acts of bribery and dishonesty. The Group also
strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations in
regarding of anti-bribery and anti-corruption. In 2016,
there is no report of corruption in our Group.

Community investment policy

The Group is considerate to the local community that our
businesses locate and hope we could create positive
impacts to the society. We support and respect culture
diversity and values of the community. The Group
encourages its employees in all levels to take part in
charitable activities.
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EENEREEERAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, aged 47, was appointed as director
of the Company on 13 June 2013. He is the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of the
Company. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng is also a founder
of the Group. He has been in the business of trading
TFT-LCD components for over 13 years and has
established close relationships with various suppliers. He
is responsible for formulating the Group’s overall strategic
planning and development, and management of the
Group’s business. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist
University with a bachelor of science in combined
sciences in mathematical science degree. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng is also a director of all of the
Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, the
British Virgin Islands, Samoa and Taiwan.

Mr. Liu Ka Wing, aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 18 June 2013. He joined the
Group in November 2008. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s administrative functions and
compliance issue; and assisting in the management of the
Group’s business. Mr. Liu has about 22 years of
experience in accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in various certified public accountants firm and
corporations, responsible for general accounting functions.
Mr. Liu is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Tse Ka Wing, aged 41, joined the Group in May 2013
and is the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. He was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He is primarily
responsible for the financial management, supervision of
financial reporting and corporate finance matters of the
Group. Mr. Tse graduated from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor of business administration
degree. He is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tse is
a professional accountant with over 19 years of
experience in accounting and had previously served as a
senior manager of an international firm of certified public
accountants. Mr. Tse was appointed in January 2015 and
retired in May 2015 as an independent non-executive
director of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Jicheng Umbrella Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 1027), a company whose shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, aged 50, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company
on 20 January 2014 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company.

He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated from the
University of Melbourne, Australia with a degree of
bachelor of commerce. He was a member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants in
February 1992 and was admitted as an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 1997. Mr. Wong has more than 23 years of
experience in auditing and corporate finance work. Over
the past three years, he served as independent non-
executive directors for the following companies listed on (i)
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely Western Securities
Co. Ltd. (stock code: 002673) and Yang Guang Co. Ltd
(stock code: 000608); and (ii) the Stock Exchange, namely
Golden Resources Development International Limited
(stock code: 677); Beijing North Star Company Limited
(stock code: 588) and Biosino Bio-Technology and
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Science Incorporation (stock code: 8247). He is currently
serving as independent non-executive directors for the
following companies which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, namely EcoGreen International Group Limited
(stock code: 2341), LongiTech Smart Energy Holding
Limited (stock code: 1281), Ascent International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 264), Kee Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2011) and Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (stock
code: 2868).

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 20
January 2014 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Wong graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a degree of bachelor of engineering in
electrical engineering. He further received his master of
science in engineering (building services engineering)
degree from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was
registered as a chartered engineer (CEng) at the
Engineering Council in April 1998 and was registered as a
registered professional engineer in electrical discipline at
the Engineers Registration Board in July 1999. He has
been a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology since February 1998 and the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers since May 1998. Mr. Wong has
over 24 years of experience in the engineering industry.

Mr. Li Shui Yan, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 20
January 2014 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from
National Chengchi University in Taiwan with a degree of
bachelor of business administration. Mr. Li has more than
19 years of experience in corporate finance. Currently, he
is the managing director of Dakin Capital Limited, a
licensed corporation to carry out type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activity under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong.

Note: The executive Directors of the Company are also the senior
management of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors of the Company present their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 13 June
2013 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 7 February 2014
(the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 25 of this annual
report which forms part of this directors’ report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

To help conserve the environment, the Group has
implemented policies to encourage its employees for the
efficient use of energy and resources. Besides, the Group
has internal control measures in place to ensure its
processing service providers to comply with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental
policies and performance can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on
pages 43 to 49 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0
cent (2015: HKO.5 cent) per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the proposed
final dividend will be paid on or about 7 June 2017 to
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 17 May 2017.
Based on 1,483,687,151 ordinary shares of the Company
in issue as of the date of this report, the total dividend will
amount to approximately HK$14,837,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2016 amounted to approximately HK$495,310,000 (2015:
HK$481,308,000).
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$4,000 (2015: HK$200,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group, as extracted
from the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2013, 31
December 2014, 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2016, is set out on page 184 of the annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
did not redeem any of its shares, and neither did the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any
of the Company’s shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was approved and adopted
pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder
passed on 20 January 2014 (the “Adoption Date”). The
following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The terms of the Share Option Scheme
are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”).

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the Participants (as
defined below) and for such other purposes as the
Board may approve from time to time.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Board may, at its discretion, invite:

(i) any director of each member of the Group or
of any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”);

(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity (the “Employee”);

(i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any Employee or any director of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity;

(iv) a company beneficially owned by any Employee

or any director of each member of the Group
or of any Invested Entity;
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(v)  any consultant, professional and other adviser
to each member of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including their employees or executives
or any persons, firms or companies proposed
to be appointed for providing such services);

(vi) any chief executives or substantial shareholders
of the Company;

(vi) any supplier, customer, service provider,
business or joint venture partner, contractor, of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(viii) any person who, at the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group or any Invested Entity, provided
that the Board may at its absolute discretion
determine whether or not one falls within the
above categories,

(together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up share options to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price determined in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each
Participant, the Board would take into account such
factors as the Board may at its discretion consider
appropriate.

Duration

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the Adoption Date.

Timing for exercising option

The period as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and specify in relation to any
particular option holder in his option agreement
during which the option may be exercised (subject to
such restriction on exercisability specified therein),
which shall be not greater than the period
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules from time to
time (which is, as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, a period of 10 years from the
date of the granting of the option).
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Acceptance and payment on acceptance of option
offer

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within the period from the date on which
such offer is made by the Board in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme to such date as the
Board may determine and specify in the letter where
such offer is made to a Participant in such form as
the Board may from time to time determine, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee.

Subscription Price

The subscription price in respect of each Share
issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted
hereunder shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of offer, which must be a business day;

(i) a price being the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.
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Maximum number of Shares available for
subscription

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Placing and
the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the prospectus
of the Company dated 24 January 2014) (being
132,000,000 Shares). The Company may renew this
limit at any time, subject to shareholders’ approval
and the issue of a circular and in accordance with
the GEM Listing Rules provided that the number of
shares to be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under all
the share option schemes does not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Company had
132,000,000 share options available to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 8.9% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

Maximum entitlement of Shares of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director of the Company,
or to any of their respective associates, in excess of
01% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company, its parent company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing

Mr. Tse Ka Wing

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu

Mr. Li Shui Yan

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Tse Ka Wing and Mr. Li Shui Yan will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr.
Tse Ka Wing and Mr. Li Shui Yan will, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the Board
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Except for the service contract with Mr. Tse Ka Wing
which commenced on 26 March 2015, each of the
executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date except terminated by either party
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to
the other. The service contracts with Mr. Cheng Wai Tak
and Mr. Liu Ka Wing are renewed for a term of three
years commencing on 7 February 2017. They are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
except terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting. The aforementioned
appointments are renewed for a term of three years
commencing on 7 February 2017.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to
enable smooth operation within the Group, the Group
offered competitive remuneration packages (with reference
to market conditions and individual qualifications and
experience) and various in-house training courses. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular
basis.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, market competitiveness,
individual performance and achievement, to the Board for
determination.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 31 and Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, Perfect Display Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy
agreement as tenant with Earn Master Limited (“Earn
Master”) as landlord to lease a premise in Hong Kong at
an annual rental of HK$816,000 for a term of one year
from 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016. Earn Master
was paid a rental fee of HK$544,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: HK$816,000). Earn Master is
wholly owned by the spouse of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak.

Save for the Profit Guarantee as disclosed under the
section headed "PROFIT GUARANTEE IN RELATION TO
THE ACQUISITION OF THE ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST IN
PERFECT SHINY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED” and disclosed
elsewhere in this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or his connected entities
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every
director of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains
directors and officers liability insurance, which gives
appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its
directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 50 to 52 of the annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Based on the information available to the Company and
within the knowledge and belief of the Directors, none of
the Directors or the controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) have
any business or interest which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group, or have any other conflict
of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

Report of the Directors

ESERE
EERERX
BREAARZABERMA FAANSESR

HATBRBREANFRMRI A AR 218
RHEL HERRARREERBTRE - AR
FEREENERMABREEXRR BESH
EERHEERDNEMERTY  BEHE
TFEESL -

EEREREEBCBEFE

ESNRARE
528 e

BEZEEFBEHENFHRFL0E

BFHEBEERER

FA AEEMEHERZEZREIERZIEEE
REAEGRIBER -

tﬁ\f*gm
REARFRASERRREFTAMEAE R
HE_T— /\¢+ A=Zt—HALFER E=F

SARARAEEBR(EZRAER EHRADH
ERAERNKEXRBEBREFAATEBREF
ZEBIED  AEMRXFALTHRERLE
BEFAESAREFEEMEMNEER -

BXXEBEHER®XAF 2016 F ;|

63



Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2016, interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) held by the Directors and chief
executives of the Company which have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the standard of dealings by directors set out
in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

EERTETHRAEBREAQFIHME
B ZENROREERORE
SHHEER AR

RZZE—ARFF+_A=+—H EERARQA=E
BITRABRARBIREMABEEEIE(EER
BERBEGEA(BEHRBEEN])EXVE)H
fEm - BERDREST  BEREESFRB
EIEBIEXVERETR F8D AR E - AHNEXR
NAIRBTHMEZLE AR BREREERERS
REEKRINZEERXHEERERIERED
TS ROKE) - SR R 3B 5 & B K ] 535214
PR TE » 7B A0 8% 1E 32 & I P 46 80 & ac it A &) 4
wmRRE IR IEBAIER ETARRISE5.4655.67
BBz ERETRSZERMBE ANg
AR MRS RABIT

Long positions in shares of the Company: REATRBWEFE:
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of Director Capacity shares held capital
ARAE BT
Expng -7} FEERGEE REBD L
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak Interest in controlled corporation 923,427,151 62.24%
BRE L AR ER (Note) (1 :t)
Beneficial owner 2,220,000 0.15%
EmEBA
Note: Wit

These 923,427,151 shares are held by Winful Enterprises Limited (“Winful
Enterprises”), which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak. As such, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had
registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the standard of dealings by
directors set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2016, other than the Director and chief executive of the
Company, the following persons/entities have an interest or
a short position in the shares or the underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were required to be recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO:

Long position in shares of the Company:
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Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued share
Name Nature of interests shares held capital
KATE BT
= ERME FRERGOHE RAEETZ L
Winful Enterprises Directly beneficially owned 923,427,151 62.24%
(Note)
Winful Enterprises BEEERHESR (Ktit)

Note: Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.

Bret: BIBEFRHE G SRS LR RHEA Winful

Enterprises 5 A ) 7% £923,427,1510% % 17 & # & #

2% o
m

BXXEBEHER®XAF 2016 F ;|

65



66

Report of the Directors
EEERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no
other person had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 56.5% (2015: 60.6%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 16.8% (2015: 14.1%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 90.7% (2015: 91.2%) of the
total purchases for the year and purchase from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to approximately
64.5% (2015: 74.2%).

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in
these major suppliers or customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following connected
and continuing connected transactions, certain details of
which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements
of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Connected transaction

The material related party transactions in relation to the
key management personnel remuneration as disclosed in
Note 29(d) to the consolidated financial statements are
connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 20.31(6) of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Continuing connected transaction

The material related party transaction in relation to the
rental fee paid to a related party as disclosed in Note
29(b) to the consolidated financial statements is continuing
connected transactions exempt from reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 20.33(3)(c) of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that those material related party
transactions disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements did not fall under the definition of
“‘connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with any
of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules.
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PROFIT GUARANTEE IN RELATION TO
THE ACQUISITION OF THE ENTIRE
EQUITY INTEREST IN PERFECT SHINY
TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

On 22 January 2015, Rightone Resources Limited
(“Rightone”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) to acquire the entire equity interest in Perfect
Shiny Technology Limited (“Perfect Shiny”) from Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak (“Mr. Cheng”), a director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company (the “Acquisition”). Pursuant to
the Agreement, Mr. Cheng warranted and guaranteed to
Rightone that the sum of the audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of Perfect Shiny for the two
financial years ending 31 December 2016 shall be not less
than HK$34,000,000 (“Profit Guarantee”). Mr. Cheng agreed
to pay to the Group the amount that corresponds to the
amount of any shortfall from HK$34,000,000 multiplied by
9.513 (being the implied multiple derived from the valuation
of Perfect Shiny and its subsidiary at HK$323,442,000 as
at 31 December 2014 performed by an independent valuer
divided by the guaranteed profit in the amount of
HK$34,000,000 under the Profit Guarantee). The liability
may be settled in cash, or, if agreed by the Group and Mr.
Cheng and subject to regulatory compliance, by the buy-
back by the Company of certain number of consideration
shares of the Company. However, the maximum liability of
Mr. Cheng in respect of the non-fulfillment of the Profit
Guarantee shall not exceed HK$323,000,000.

Details of the Acquisition were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 January 2015
and the circular of the Company dated 6 March 2015.

Based on the audited consolidated financial statements of
Perfect Shiny for the financial years ended 31 December
2015 and 2016, the total sum of the audited consolidated
profit attributable to equity holders of Perfect Shiny for the
two financial years ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately HK$31,767,000, which fell short of amount
of the Profit Guarantee by approximately HK$2,233,000.
Accordingly, Mr. Cheng is obliged to compensate an
amount of approximately HK$21,238,000 to the Group.
Pursuant to the Agreement, part of the compensation
amount, being HK$10,000,000, is set off against the
outstanding amount payable to Mr. Cheng by Rightone
under a promissory note issued by Rightone. The
remaining compensation amount of approximately
HK$11,238,000 receivable from Mr. Cheng is expected to
be settled in cash on or before 31 March 2017.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY’S PLACING

The proceeds from the Company’s issue of 330,000,000
new shares (the “Placing”) at the time of the Listing
amounted to approximately HK$76 million, net of
underwriting fees and other related expenses. Details of
the use of proceeds from the Placing are set out on
pages 24 to 25 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
required by the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

In accordance with Rule 6A19 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed Vinco Capital Limited
(formerly known as Grand Vinco Capital Limited) (“Vinco”)
as the compliance adviser of the Company. As notified by
Vinco, neither Vinco nor its directors or employees or
associates had any interest in the securities of the
Company or any other companies of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities) as at 31
December 2016.

The compliance adviser’s appointment is for a period
commencing on the Listing Date and ending on the date
on which the Company complies with Rule 18.03 of the
GEM Listing Rules in respect of the despatch of its
annual report of the financial results for the second full
financial year commencing after the Listing Date, i.e. for
the year ended 31 December 2016, or until the
compliance adviser agreement is terminated, whichever is
earlier. Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement,
Vinco received fees for acting as the compliance adviser
of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

All the independent non-executive Directors were
delegated with the authority to review on an annual basis
the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
given by each of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Winful
Enterprises, the controlling shareholders of the Company
(collectively, the “Covenantors”) in favour of the Company
dated 20 January 2014 (the “Non-Competition Deed”).
The Covenantors has provided to the Company all
information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors and the Covenantors
have confirmed to the Company that each of the
Covenantors and his/its associates have not breached the
terms of the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed. All independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that they are not aware of any non-
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed by the
Covenantors during the year.

Details of the Non-Competition Deed have been set out in
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated
24 January 2014.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year or subsisted
at the end of the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 26 to 42 of the annual report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Perfect Optronics Limited

Cheng Wai Tak
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PERFECT OPTRONICS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Perfect Optronics
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 83 to 183, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

o Inventory valuation and provision

o Valuation of unlisted equity investment

Independent Auditor’'s Report
BB R
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B ZEAHRE

Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EPNEFTNAEERRETEE

Inventory valuation and provision

FEAERRE

Refer to note 4.1(a) and note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FLHREMB MR E41(0) KM FE17

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held
inventories of HK$167,523,000. As described in the
accounting policies in note 2.11 to the consolidated
financial statements, inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

R-ZE—XRNF+_A=+—H" Em.?ﬁﬁﬁ
167,523,000/ 7T ° #0457 & B 15 MK MY sE2. 112 51
BREFTH - FE TR A KR #I8 F ERE 2B
5 ER

The Group operates in a market where new
products releases are regular. There is a risk that
inventories held will be sold below cost or become
obsolete in light of technological advancement.
There is inherent judgement in the levels of sales
the directors forecast when assessing the net
realisable value (“NRV”).

ERENTISEMENERBED - BLMHFF
f%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%&$%ﬁ%ﬁ%ilﬂ&%@ﬁ@
R B o MAT AT E R R E (A B3R FE]DE -
=R HE KT TR 17 72 & A H o
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We understood, evaluated and tested the controls by
which management determined the estimated selling
price for different types of products based on a
consistent process as in prior years where
historically there were no material adjustments
required as a result of the estimation process.
BMTE THERAAEEEREHETFERNE
FEENRENEmNEEBMERENEEZEERE M
BEYERGEEFMAELERFE -

In relation to the types of products which had
material balances as at year end, we evaluated the
assumptions applied by management on using the
historical sales data which reflected the expected life
cycle of similar products as the basis to estimate
their future sales. We considered these assumptions
appropriate based on the Group’s historical sales

pattern.
ARFREEREHRNERBELMS - RS E
EREMREANRR  ZERKREARKRRFEEM®M

B RPN BEHERBRIESBAERRHEENE
L= E%E%E@&%%%ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ%kﬁgﬁ



Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

Independent Auditor’'s Report
BB R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EPNEFTNAEERARETSE

Inventory valuation and provision (continued)

FEMERREHE)

Management calculates the NRV at each period end
based on the estimated selling price less cost to
sell, which requires significant judgements and
assumptions to be made to determine the estimated
selling price of individual products of similar nature
and expectation of future sales based on current
market conditions and available information. The
estimations are also subject to uncertainty as a
result of future changes of market trends, customer
demands and technology development.

REBEHRER - B2 ERE G5 & ERHEEK A

ZIEHE R HE R B - R K & TR R B
THARAIBEREE - B TXAMSEBE &
FREREMRBEROAKREGMELNTHERAER
PR IR 1 ©

We further discussed with management to
understand the additional factors that were
considered relevant based on the current market
conditions that may require adjustments to the
historical sales pattern for both the price and the
quantity of the selected products and obtained
evidence for these explanations. We independently
evaluated the relevance of these factors and
evidence supporting the estimation of the NRV by
using our industry knowledge and external market
analysis and found them to be reasonable. We
further tested, on a sample basis, by comparing the
estimated selling price and sales quantity with post
year-end sales data of the selected products and
found the estimated selling price and sales quantity
in the NRV assessment to be within reasonable
ranges.

BHMEETEEE—FTm UTHREBEERNRE
MAMZRNEMAEEREZ  MAEFTEHMERS
EmBREBENATHEBEFELHIARE AR
ZERBIGSER - BMIABFIA1T R M K IMEB
MHEAOMB LT EZERNZNHERE R FA#
WHEMTHNIRE TRREBSE - HME—F
ERAMEAS  UEFEEREEEMKERNTF
EEHEOHERBEELR  WSEHAZR FEN G
TR EEREEBABEE -

Based on the work performed, we considered that
the inventory provision provided was in line with the
Group’s policy and was supportable by historical
market trends, customer demands, technology
development as well as management’s expectations
for future sales and inventory management plans.
ERBAERITHIE  RMARABMTIRNTEER
BEREEEENEE THATMSBE TFF
RBMBRERAREEBHARKHENEARTE
ETRGTEIPT X HF ©
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B ZEAHRE

Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EPNEFTNAEERRETEE

Valuation of unlisted equity investment

FLEMREREZMEE

Refer to note 3.3, note 4.1(b) and note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FH2HGEAMERERMTE3.3 ~ MisF41(b) R 5E16 o

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has unlisted
equity investment of HK$31,671,000 measured at fair
value, using market information and significant
unobservable inputs.

RZEBE—ARE+-_A=+-—H FEAMHERKE
RO BEGASE  EEEHEEMNIELTRER
BEIR N BET 2 A31,671,000%8 T ©

The Group has engaged external appraiser to
assess the fair value of unlisted equity investment.
The appraised value is based on valuation model.
Because of the limited comparable transactions in
the market, it is challenging to validate the appraisal
value and therefore an inherent risk in the appraised
value remains.

EEEC R AT EIELTRERE 2R
REBE FAEHEEEDAGEERESEE - ARTIS
FAILEBROZSER  ZEBETGHEEE SR E
R EEEFERE A AR
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We understood, evaluated and tested the related
controls over valuations process of unlisted equity
investment.

BT TR LTRERETHRAESD
B A8 B BS E FR O o

As the valuation of the unlisted equity investment
required significant estimates and reliance on
external valuation, we assessed the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the external
appraiser.

HRIFELTRERE ZHEFTEERGHE RKEI
BEE ZMETEIBAEMOTERNL B
NEZXEME -

In addition, we also assessed both the methodology
and assumptions used by management in the
calculation of the year end fair value by the following
procedures:

AN BAMHEEEEAEFRAABEMALN
TAERBRE  BEWAT:



Key Audit Matter
BRESEE

Independent Auditor’'s Report
BB R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EPNEFTNAEERARETSE

Valuation of unlisted equity investment (continued)

FLMBRERE 2EHEGE)

We focused on this area because the valuation of
investment in unlisted equity is highly dependent on
the estimate of volatility which is not observable in
the market.

HRIELETRERENGETS FRIKEONGEE
MmEREMSE E T BRE - kR MEFBE T IE
1 -

o Evaluated the methodology and assumptions in
particular volatility used with the valuation
model by comparing the assumptions used
against appropriate benchmarks and
investigated significant differences, challenging
the appropriateness of the pricing multiples
available from comparable companies and
assessing sensitivities to assumptions.
EEEREECRAC A ERRE  LEER
8 FERBEREANBRREFEERFELERK
AEEREZR  HALBRARNEEREHES
BEREER RATHRENHERE -

o Tested the calculation of the valuation model for
accuracy.

HEERUNEFTEREETAA -

° Used our valuation expert to perform
independent review.

MAEMANGESERETHELERN -

Based on the work performed, we considered the
assumptions used in the valuation model to
determine the fair value of unlisted investment were
supportable by evidence we gathered.

EREHTHIE  BMRRWESEKNIEFHF
EBEEHLIMEREATFTEZGEEREMEANRKE -
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B HERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
BB R
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B ZEAHRE

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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B M % A0S

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A 3¢
,%/T S H LI& fm %
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-T-—AFE+-A=T-ALEE

2016 2015
— —E—hEF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5E F&T FAT
Revenue N 5, 6 1,149,998 1,274,174
Cost of sales 5 & KA 8 (1,037,263) (1,177,343)
Gross profit EF 112,735 96,831
Other gains/(losses), net Hi e (EE)FE 7 47,067 (1,749)
Distribution and selling expenses % #H & 4 & B > 8 (16,636) (16,354)
General and administrative —MRITHRAX
expenses 8 (87,729) (87,123)
Research and development 9t R AR X
expenses 8 (6,559) (9,256)
Operating profit mEFE 98,878 32,349
Finance income B 75 W A 417 1,101
Finance costs 5 ER (1,765) (1,423)
Finance costs, net W5 ERFE 10 (1,348) (322)
Profit before income tax BR it 15 B A1 A 78 97,530 32,027
Income tax expense s & M 11 (9,195) (6,585)
Profit for the year FEFHE 88,335 25,442
Other comprehensive income:  Hftt 2k % :
Iltems that may be reclassified BEE AT EF 75 45 2
subsequently to income W2 IEH
statement
Change in value of available-for- At HE SR EE 2
sale financial assets BEZY 570 7,041
Currency translation differences — MNE 37 & = %8 (476) (1,822)
Total comprehensive income FEXHKZAHE
for the year 88,429 30,661
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FEREWER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—A"F+-A=+—HIEFE

onsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2016 2015
ZB-AF —T—RF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B = TER T
Profit for the year attributable to: FEFERBE R :
Equity holders of the Company  AAF#EZEFH A 90,729 27,732
Non-controlling interests 1% Bt = (2,394) (2,290)
88,335 25,442
Total comprehensive income FEXEKZAE
for the year attributable to: BEER:
Equity holders of the Company  AAREZEFHB A 90,823 33,739
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = (2,394) (3,078)
88,429 30,661
Basic and diluted earnings BREARBEERN HK 6.12 cents = HK 1.87 cents
per share 12 &l AL

The notes on pages 91 to 183 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Finolnciol Position

e B AR R R

As at 31 December 2016
RZZE—R"FE+=-A=+—8H

2016 2015
—E—-REF —T—R%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
=2 FHET FBT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 14 3,193 4,784
Intangible assets EmEEAE 15 3,122 12,552
Available-for-sale financial AtHESHEE
assets 16 31,671 32,285
37,986 49,621
Current assets REBEE
Inventories EA=Y 17 167,523 77,111
Trade and JE U BR FR R E A
other receivables & W =k 18 97,785 203,095
Tax recoverable A] Uy [B] % 18 = 151
Restricted bank deposits 2R B RITE R 19 24,702 20,316
Fixed deposits with original REBABHEE=EH
maturity date more than 2 BFE K
three months 19 = 17,755
Cash and cash equivalents BehIREEEY 19 174,126 127,953
464,136 446,381
Total assets EEHRE 502,122 496,002
Equity and liabilities EzRkEE
Equity attributable to equity AT REBESEBAENL
holders of the Company =
Share capital fi& Zs 20 14,837 14,837
Reserves 1 124,398 122,231
Retained earnings B 17 Yz 210,724 127,413
349,959 264,481
Non-controlling interests R - 15,248
Total equity xmE 349,959 279,729
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBMRRE

As at 31 December 2016
RZBE-—RE+ZA=+—H

2015
—E—hF
Note HK$’000
B 3 FET
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEME
Note payable N E & 29(c)(ii) — 10,000
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSHH A& 23 137 644
137 10,644
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and FER BRI E A
other payables FERT R 21 149,371 164,429
Note payable N R & 29(c)(ii) = 10,000
Bank borrowings RAT B K 22 = 31,200
Current income tax liabilities EHEHAaE 2,655 —
152,026 205,629
Total liabilities EEHBE 152,163 216,273
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEHEE 502,122 496,002

The notes on pages 91 to 183 are an integral part of HFI1E183EMM T BUILFLRE M RRAEK
these consolidated financial statements. 2 o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 183 F83E183EMGZEEMBHRREN T —tF=
were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March AZtTHHREFSHME TKRREFSEHEEF -
2017 and were signed on its behalf.

Cheng Wai Tak Tse Ka Wing
Director Director
BEE EIES S

EBEE BEFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERBEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-Z—AF+-A=+—BLEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KAABERAARGRS
Non-
Share Share Other ~ Merger  Revaluation Exchange  Retained controlling Total
* reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity

capital premium  reserves’
Rx ROEE Hbfk a0HEFE  ERRRE ENRE 27KE a5t FERER RE4E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
ik Tz TEx TEx TEx ThT TEzr Tz TE=n T TExn

Balance at 1 January 2016 —Z-RE-A-REH
Comprehensive income 2EHRE
Profit for the year FEANE

Other comprehensive income 2 Fl 3%
Change in value of available-for- AT HESBEE

14,837 465,738 67,349 (415,675) 7,091 2.272) 127413 264,481 15,248 279,729

- - - - - - 90,729 90,729 (2,394 88,335

sale financial assets ZBEEY - - - - 570 - - 570 - 570
Currency translation differences ~ SNEHE % = = = = = (476) = (476) - (476)
Total other comprehensive income 2 B 458 = = = = 570 (476) = 94 - 94
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EKHHHE = = = = 570 (476) 90,729 90,823 (2,394) 88,429
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR 28 = = = = 55 2,018 = 2,073 (12,854 (10,781)
Dividend relating to 2015 —Z-RERE = = = = = = (7418) (7,418 - (1419

- - - - 55 2,018 (7.418)  (5,349) (12,854)  (18,199)

Balance at 31 December 2016 —®-~E+=B=+-A&t

14,837 465,738 67,349 (415,675) 7,716 (780) 210,724 349,959 - 349,959

BXXEBEHR®XAE 2016 F3;
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReRRBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_ZT—XFt+t-A=+—RHLEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARERFEARGES
Non-
Share Share Other ~ Merger  Revaluation ~ Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves®  reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity

B REE HbEE AHEE ZHRE EXRE fR4a Bt FERED BEnEE
Note  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HKS$'000
(i3 TEL TEn TEx  TER FATL TEL AL TER TEL TER

Balance at 1 January 2015 —Z-nf-fA-REH 13,200 77,800 38,000 3,900 (6] (1,185) 107,099 238811 18,326 257,137
Comprehensive income 2E Y
Profit for the year FERE = = = = = = 217132 21732 (2.290) 25442
Other comprehensive income ~ E A 2 E Ml 5
Change in value of available-for- A EESREEZBELE
sale financial assets - - - - 7,094 - - 7,094 (53) 704
Currency translation differences ~ SMEHEZE = = = = - (1,087) - (1,087) (735 (1,822
Total other comprehensive income  E At 2 K & B F - = = = 7,094 (1,087) = 6,007 (788) 5219
Total comprehensive income 2ENGEE - - - - 7,094 (1,087) 27732 33739 (8,078) 30,661
Transactions with equity holders REZEEHA
in their capacity as owners (FBRRBEEAIRS
Issue of new shares as BAMRERKREHNEH
consideration for common ZRE
control combination 211 1,637 387,938 — (419,575 = = -  (30,000) - (30,000
Contribution from controlling BRER
shareholder AR 211 = - 29349 = = = - 29349 - 29349
Dividend relating to 2014 —Z-mERE = = = = = = (7418 (7418 = (7.418)
Total transactions with equity ~ REZRHEAGHBEEA)
holders in their capacity as RA8E
owners 1,637 387,938 29,349 (419,575) - - (7,418) (8,089) - (8,069)
Balance at 31 December 2015 ZE-REt-R=t-AEH 14,837 465,738 67,349  (415,675) 7,001 2272 127,413 264,481 16,248 279,729
& Other reserves include: (1) the difference between the share capital ~ * HEfEEeRE: ()VREAAR EmETHEBESHA (=
issued by the Company for acquisition of the subsidiaries pursuant M) ARRGRBEHBRAREEITHRARNER
to a group reorganisation (“Reorganisation”) for the listing of the REKENHBARZBERNERE: RQFTKER
Company and the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries being REAEHRERBRREREZERSE o (fiF2.1.1)

acquired at the time of the Reorganisation; and (2) the amount of
the loan waived by the controlling shareholder upon completion of
the common control combination. (Note 2.1.1)

The notes on pages 91 to 183 are an integral part of ZEI1E183E K AILF4RA P IEIRERAMMAK
these consolidated financial statements. #Hm o
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Consolidated S’ro’remenT of Cash Flows
HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_Z—XR"E+-_A=1+—HItEFEE
2015
—T—HEF
Note HK$’000
Bt 5 F& T
Cash flows from operating RETEH
activities HERE
Cash generated from operations #& & EAMIR & 25 63,267 73,960
Income tax paid BEEH (6,481) (4,562)
Interest paid B F B (1,765) (1,423)
Net cash generated from KRETEBES
operating activities FRE 55,021 67,975
Cash flows from investing REEHH
activities HERE
Proceeds from disposal of HEMT B AR TSR
subsidiaries 28 41,777 —
Purchases of property, plant and BB - M E
equipment P& 14 (1,810 (2,095)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHEE
financial assets TREE = (23,954)
Decrease in fixed deposits with R Z|HIH
original maturity date more than BB =& A =~
three months TE B E SR 4178 2,790
Interest received 2 F B 417 1,101
Net cash generated from/(used in) & EEEL (FiH)
investing activities FIRE 44,562 (22,158)
Cash flows from financing METHHN
activities HeRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings 8 17 f& 5 B 18 7018 15,600 65,517
Repayments of bank borrowings {&i& 3R 77 & 3% (46,800) (81,458)
Payment of cash as part of the  F & £ [7 4% &l
consideration for common G ED KB
control combination ZHE IR - (10,000)
Repayment of promissory note  f8 & & X Z & (10,000) =
(Increase)/decrease in restricted  (3&0), 6 > 52 R il $8
bank deposits TER (4,386) 1,914
Advance from — B R B
a shareholder = 1,580
Dividends paid [RENEES (7,418) (7,418)
Net cash used in financing B & E & T A
activities FES (53,004) (29,865)
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onsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z—A"F+-A=+—HIEFE

2016 2015
—E—KREF —T—hF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Ff =% TER FHE T
Net increase in cash and cash BEREBEESZEY
equivalents 3 hn 7 K8 46,579 15,952
Cash and cash equivalents at FOReMEEF
beginning of year B 127,953 112,436
Exchange losses on cash and B & NEELEEY
cash equivalents i 5 & 18 (406) (435)
Cash and cash equivalents at FREESRERESH
end of year B 174,126 127,953

The notes on pages 91 to 183 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 June
2013, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (as Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Winful Enterprises
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”), and ultimately controlled by Mr.
Cheng Wai Tak (“Mr. Cheng”). The address of its
registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the trading and processing of
display panels, development and sales of optics
products and trading of related electronic
components.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

e B RS R R MY R

—REH

BEXABEBERAR(ARADRZE—=F
ANAT=BRBASHESAAEUBFTA)
EHREMEFMRIA—HEREFRA
7] o NAFIHE B R AR AR AR A R R Winful
Enterprises Limited * EA—RXREBER K
HE(RBEXESDEMKIHNAT R
m%1{%$6%%iﬁﬁﬂ¢% Ha
fitt ## = & iz 7 Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands ° N2 &R D 7
BERBMAERZMERARBIZER £/ -

ARBR—EREERQR  MEMER
T(%;’E%MZS%J)EE%%%%/T_\EWZ%
ZEMT -~ JeBE 2 F % N aEE A R
METHHIZES °

Br=AHEAS - MBERRTIAET (BT
25 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBERME
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the BENERAVERRMRANEZSH
preparation of these consolidated financial BEHFNOT - RSB AEHAN - WEER
statements are set out below. These policies have EMEFEERER -

been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 wREBEE

The consolidated financial statements of the AKRARIWEGENBHREREZRE S
Company have been prepared in accordance EMAE((FEASHAAE]) Bk
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial WETBEANE BB mELEA(H
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the B HRELERDRE - SREVH
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public WMEREBEBEEER A HE - MEN
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated AREEFENAHEEEREE
financial statements have been prepared under BRAN ©

the historical cost convention, except for
available-for-sale financial assets which have
been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in mELRE & BB RS R B BT 7%
conformity with  HKFRS requires the use of WMETEFRAE TR -
certain critical accounting estimates. It also ENFEERECRALASEN S
requires management to exercise its TR EBRERITEEAE - FRS
judgement in the process of applying the EMHEsEEHENEE - 3k
Group’s accounting policies. The areas W B IS SRR AE N E R BRER A
involving a higher degree of judgement or FIREE - AR E o

complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Q2 Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

241

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Common control combination and gain

on Profit Guarantee
Common control combination

On 22 January 2015, Rightone
Resources Limited (“Rightone”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Agreement”) to acquire
the entire equity interest in Perfect Shiny
Technology Limited (“Perfect Shiny”) (the
“Acquisition”) from Mr. Cheng, a director
and controlling shareholder of the
Company. Pursuant to the Agreement,
the consideration of the Acquisition was
HK$323,000,000, of which
HK$20,000,000 was satisfied by the
issuance of a promissory note in favour
of Mr. Cheng in the same amount;
HK$10,000,000 was settled by cash to
Mr. Cheng upon completion of the
Acquisition; and the rest was satisfied by
the allotment and issue by the Company
of 163,687,151 new shares of the
Company (the “Consideration Shares”) to
the nominee of Mr. Cheng. Furthermore,
a shareholder’s loan of approximately
HK$29,349,000 payable by Perfect Shiny
to Mr. Cheng was waived upon the
completion of the Acquisition. Details of
the Acquisition are set out in the
Company’s circular to its shareholders
dated 6 March 2015. The Acquisition
was approved by an ordinary resolution
passed by the shareholders of the
Company by way of poll at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 17
April 2015. The Acquisition was
completed and the Consideration Shares
were issued on 30 April 2015, at which
time the closing price of the shares of
the Company was HK$2.38 per share.

2

FE

=
=

wa B RRME

SR E(F)

21 wEBEXE(HE)

2.1.1 REFEH & GF R 5 F R W 25

H A7 H & G

Rightone Resources Limited
([Rightone ) (AR 7] 2 & & Kt
BRra)RN—_T—RAF—A=+
ZHEIEEHE (& -
RESEE (AR ZESRIE
A& B ER) BB Bl M B B R A ]
(TE &) 2= 2B A% #& ([ 38 =
H]) - RiEZaE - WEEE
2 18/A323,000,000/8 ¢ + H
R 20,000,000 7T i 48 [A) & 5¢
ERTRE AALEESM
10,000,000/ Jo A Y B8 £ 18 5
18 AR & ST T 8B ST A 5 A
RBETREBARRAMEILE
Z R B AR B R BT
163,687,151% & 2~ & %1 & 13
(MRERMDD T o g -
HENEEE CRRERD
29,349,000/ T E NI B E 18
R WEEE 2 FE
HRARF AR AT —AF
ZANHBERRZEBH - U
BEHEHEHAARTBRER=-F
—RAFMNA+EHETZER
BAREEAKREFNBRE
BRERIE  c WHEELE
T MREBROTER=ZF
—hFEMNA=FTHET EF
RRABRRM BB TERSTR
2.38B T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CLE R

-
=

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Common control combination and gain

on Profit Guarantee (Continued)

Common control combination
(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, it was
determined that the Group and Perfect
Shiny and its subsidiaries (“Perfect Shiny
Group”) were ultimately controlled by Mr.
Cheng before and after the Acquisition,
and that control is not transitory. The
Group and the Perfect Shiny Group were
regarded as continuing entities as at the
date of the business combination and
hence the Acquisition was accounted for
as a combination of entities under
common control by applying the
principles of merger accounting in
accordance with the Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger accounting for
common control combinations” issued by
the HKICPA as if the Acquisition had
occurred on the date when the
combining entities first came under the
control of the controlling shareholder.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities
acquired in the common control
combinations are stated at their carrying
amounts as if they had been held or
incurred by the Group from the later of
the date on which the combining entities
first came under the control of the
controlling shareholder or the relevant
transactions giving rise to the assets or
liabilities arose.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHEMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wRBEE(E)

2.1.1 REZEHE RS FREZ W 2

2.1.1 Common control combination and gain

on Profit Guarantee (Continued)
Gain on Profit Guarantee

Pursuant to the Agreement, Mr. Cheng
agreed to irrevocably warrant and
guarantee to Rightone that the sum of
the audited consolidated profit
attributable to the equity holders of
Perfect Shiny for the two financial years
ending 31 December 2016 shall be not
less than HK$34,000,000 (“Profit
Guarantee”). Mr. Cheng agrees to pay to
the Group the amount that corresponds
to the amount of any shortfall from
HK$34,000,000 multiplied by 9.513
(being the implied multiple derived from
the valuation of Perfect Shiny Group at
HK$323,442,000 as at 31 December
2014 performed by an independent
valuer divided by the guaranteed profit in
the amount of HK$34,000,000 under the
Profit Guarantee). The liability may be
settled in cash, or, if agreed by the
Group and Mr. Cheng and subject to
regulatory compliance, by the buy-back
by the Company of certain number of the
Consideration Shares. However, the
maximum liability of Mr. Cheng in
respect of the non-fulfilment of the Profit
Guarantee shall not exceed
HK$323,000,000.

(&)
Jat PR AE K 25

BIEZHZ  BEERETH
Bl AIRightone fR 38 R IER -
RBE-ZT—XR"F+=-A=1+—
BIEMESKREE - B A&
BEAERGREZEEINES
RE 2 48F0 - 1§14 584,000,000
BT (DRFRE]) - BAERE
BAEESXHESEERTRE
34,000,000/ Ty = Ba3E LA9.513
(BB (HER{EL 2 Bl M 5%
BR=—ZF—mW&E+_A=+—H
2 i {E323,442,0005% 7T [ A Yis
AR E T 2 REH) 34,000,000
WIS BEEE)MEIE -
ZEEUARSEN A
SEESLEREREBAETE
ERTE  JHAARBEE T
B2 RERMG AL - A - &6
EEMBNRBEREENZ &
ANEE - T8 323,000,000
PBIT ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Common control combination and gain

on Profit Guarantee (Continued)
Gain on Profit Guarantee (Continued)

The sum of the audited consolidated
profit attributable to the equity holders of
Perfect Shiny for the two financial years
ended 31 December 2016 according to
its audited consolidated financial
statements is approximately
HK$31,767,000. Since the shortfall of the
Profit Guarantee is approximately
HK$2,233,000, a gain of approximately
HK$21,238,000, being the compensation
payable by Mr. Cheng, was recognised in
the consolidated income statement of the
Company for the year ended 31
December 2016. Part of the
compensation receivable is settled
against the outstanding amount payable
to Mr. Cheng under the promissory note
issued by Rightone of HK$10,000,000.
The remaining compensation receivable
from Mr. Cheng of approximately
HK$11,238,000 is expected to be settled
in cash on or before 31 March 2017.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHEMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
21 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wRBEE(E)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and

212 B EBER T E

disclosures

@

T EBIRM 2 #ET R AT
e

New standards and amendments to @)
standards adopted by the Group

IR ST R 4B 2T R -
R S Rk
ZAERAZ B AR 5
£ - RNHE I RIS

The following new standards and
amendments to standards are
mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The adoption of these new BRI EREAREER 2 ¥
standards and amendments to BRBHBEARRIEEER
standards does not have any -2

significant impact to the results and

financial position of the Group:

Hong Kong Accounting  Disclosure Initiative BB g AR REE
Standard (‘HKAS”) 1 ([BBgsE
Amendment HDEAEH

(CHES

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of BB g E BETER

Amendments Acceptable Methods o REEE  BEW
of Depreciation and SR 28 385 BX A%
Amortisation ({BFIA)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer BAgsr LR B¥ EEM
Amendments Plants E16RRERE  EY
TR F 415
({BFIA)
HKAS 27 Amendment  Equity Method in BB g ER BUMBRR
Separate Financial Fo7% LR %
Statements ({BFIA)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities: BERBRE REER:
and HKAS 28 Applying the B 105 - ER&Za
Amendments Consolidation BRMBEREE ARHRE

Exception BIE125 KBS
2aTERIE285:
({BFIA)
HKFRS 11 Amendment  Accounting for BERE WS B
Acquisitions of W& %R Bl
Interests in Joint F115 %
Operations ({BFIA)
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral BERBREEL EEET
Accounts F145 3=

Annual Improvement  Annual Improvements FENHEEE —T-Zf%F

Project 2012-2014 cycle -2
FRHAZ
EEWE

BXXEBEHER-XAF 2016 F ;K

97



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FeMBRERME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

®)

New standards and amendments to
Standards not yet adopted

The following are new standards
and amendments to standards
which have been issued but are not
effective and have not been early
adopted. The Group plans to adopt
these new standards and
amendments to standards when

2

TEETHEREAE)

21

WA ()

212 Bt BEEEB R F (&)

®)

1] R ERARZ FTE R K E R

EaT

NHIFTRT 2RI AR 2 &
RIADKERMERRE
M ARERFEN - KA
SERERNELARKR®A
I FE R R R R 2 &
AT

they become effective:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

BUATHEHH 2%
PRz &5t £ X

HKAS 7 Amendment
BB B ERETR (EFTA)

HKAS 12 Amendment
& g st 4RI 1257 (B ET A%)

HKFRS 2 Amendment
BRI |ELERNFE25 (BT A)
HKFRS 4 Amendment

BREY B REERF45(ERTA)

HKFRS 9
BB M5 W EERIE%

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 Amendments
BB WS £ R F1058 &
BB G AR F285% (BT 4%)

HKFRS 15
BB W75 5 2 Al 1557

HKFRS 15 Amendment
7 7 B 7% ¥R 5 2E R 1558
(& RTA)

HKFRS 16
BB 15 ¥ & R R 1658

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016

Statement of Cash Flows

RemER

Income Taxes
Fr 5

Classification and Measurement of Share-
Based Payment Transactions
BONARSHIDERT=

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
RABEIBREENFESR MRS R E
— & B RS S RIS 5%
[©m I A

Financial Instruments

EETHE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BREEHRABERAERRAZHANEELE

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
BEFAKBA

Clarification to HKFRS 15
BB B I s SR 155

Leases

HE

1 January 2017
—TZ—+tF5—A—H

1 January 2017
—TZ—+F—H—H

1 January 2018
—Z-N\¥—HF—H
1 January 2018

—T-N\¥—A—H

1 January 2018
—Z-N\F—HF—H

1 January 2019
—F-NF—H—-H
1 January 2018
—T-N\F—A—H
1 January 2018

—T-N\¥—A—H

1 January 2019
—ET-hAF-A—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

®)

New standards and amendments to
Standards not yet adopted:
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied
these new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not
yet effective in the preparation of
the consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the
new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the financial
statements of the Group.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

@)

Business combinations

A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

2

GeMBRRME

TEEHBRRBEA)
21 WWEEA)

2.2

212 B REBR K E(F)

(0) AR FER T
B2 ()

AEBTERERRES
MHHmERPRERERADE
MR E R B FTRT &
RIETEERBRESE
ay -

ARPEETAMERAFE]
REERTHN BB YT &
EEBI G HAKENY
BRREREATE -

Ui NG]
221 &8 kH
@ EEEH

MBAREAREEHE
BERGENER(EBRE
BHER)  EAKEHA
BEAERZA2EERE
BArS 2R ZEHaE R
SHER - WREEBEAERX
ERMEIRZEZSE
W BAKEHZEERA
BEGHE - HBAR BE
HIEEEREE 2 BELR
BETE - EHlRRLEZA
ElEEAFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FeMBRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)

Except for the Reorganisation and
business combinations under
common control, the Group applies
the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are
measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is
achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the
acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in
consolidated income statement.

2 FESIHK

GeMBRRME

RBEHE)

22 MEBAE(E)

221 ZREMRE (&)

@

TR - BRIREH
BigtkEs - BEBREBR
TRUEAIDEEFEAR
HEBFEENRKE
TR - IR AR
BEXRGHEREER
R 5% 15 U8 8 5 B] & A
FEECDHET ZBEAEG
e PlEt & - SR i an
BFTA EM A D R B
BHIM AR EERE &
FERMBHRELERNY
RERESERE -

WEHBERARELR
SRR -

HRB A FF DR -
WEITBERKRKET
FIT 15 B M A W BB BB 2 PR
EE  EFTEERER
HRAREE: ZBEEHA
EfEAEM K ELE
B REARER TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 in consolidated income
statement. Contingent
consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement s
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

®)

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Merger accounting for common
control combination

The consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining
entities or businesses in which the
common control combination
occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the
controlling party.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

®)

Merger accounting for common
control combination (Continued)

The net assets of the combining
entities or businesses are
combined using the existing book
values from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for
goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent
of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement
includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where
there is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the
consolidated financial statements
are presented as if the entities or
businesses had been combined at
the previous balance sheet date or
when they first came under
common control, whichever is
shorter.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

®)

Merger accounting for common
control combination (Continued)

A uniform set of accounting policies
is adopted by those entities. All
intra-group transactions, balances
and wunrealised gains on
transactions between combining
entities or businesses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including
professional fees, registration fees,
costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses
incurred in combining operations of
the previously separate businesses,
etc., incurred in relation to the
common control combination that
is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting is recognised as
an expense in the period in which
it is incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in consolidated
income statement. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. It means the
amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are
reclassified to consolidated income
statement or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments

in subsidiaries are

accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend

received and

receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
(Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments
in subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment
in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the directors
of the Company, who make strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements
of each of Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$),
which is the Company’s functional and
the Group’s presentation currency.
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Fe M BRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement within
“other gains/(losses), net”.

Changes in the fair value of debt
securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale
are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to
changes in amortised cost are
recognised in consolidated income
statement, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(i)  income and expenses for each
income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(d)  Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to consolidated
income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold Over the shorter of the
improvements term of the leases or
5 years
Moulds and 2—10 years
machinery
Furniture and office 3-5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement within “other
gains/(losses), net”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Intangible assets

@)

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the
identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units
to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets (Continued)
(b)  Patents

Separately acquired patents are shown
at historical cost. Patents acquired in a
business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Patents
have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost
of patents over their estimated useful
lives of 7 years.

(c)  Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful
life are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation or depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: loans and
receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

@)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “restricted bank
deposits”, “fixed deposits with
original maturity date more than
three months”, and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHEMEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
28 TRMEEH)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8.1 Classification (Continued) 281 7 # (&)

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management
intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting
period.

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.8

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

When securities classified as available-
for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement as “gains
and losses from investment securities”.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

210

Impairment of financial assets

@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

210

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@)

®)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

210

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets classified as available-for-sale
(Continued)

For debt investment, if any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in
consolidated income statement — s
removed from equity and recognised in
consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in consolidated income
statement, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated
income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in
consolidated income statement — s
reclassified from equity and recognised
in consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

211

212

213

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for
impairment. See Note 2.8.2 for further
information about the Group’s accounting for
trade and other receivables and Note 2.10 for
a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

214

2.15

216

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost: any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16

217

Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred income tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the
countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

218 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using
the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement
of financial position date and are
expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or

the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
Deferred income tax assets are

recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

()

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are
provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

219 Employee benefits

@)

Pension obligations

The Group pays contributions to defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong. The
schemes are generally funded through
payments to separate trustee-
administered funds, determined by
periodic calculations.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and
prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to
administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

219 Employee benefits (Continued)

@)

®)

(©

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group also contributes on a monthly
basis to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant
municipal and provincial governments in
the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and Taiwan. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired
employees for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. The
assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in
independently administered funds
managed by the PRC government and
Taiwan. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments
wholly due within 12 months after the
statement of financial position date are
recognised as a liability where the Group
has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the statement of financial position
date.
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Fe M BRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

219 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

(Continued)

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to anyone
item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. A contingent

asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of

economic benefits will arise, the asset and the
related income are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements of the period
in which the change occurs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described
below.

(@  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to
the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

2.24

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method.

Leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by the senior management of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) and New Taiwan
dollars (“TWD”).

Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency.
Management periodically reviews
assets and liabilities held in
currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an
acceptable level. The Group does
not enter into any arrangement to
hedge its foreign exchange rate
risk.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign
currency rates. In the opinion of the
directors, HK$ are reasonably
stable against the USD under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, and
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
with respect to the USD against
HK$ is performed.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continueqd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the impact on
exchange differences for RMB and
TWD is immaterial as at 31
December 2016 due to low volume
of transactions and minimal amount
of balances, and accordingly no
sensitivity analysis is performed.

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have
been HK$703,000 higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on
translation of RMB-denominated
bank balances.

At 31 December 2015, if TWD had
weakened/strengthen by 5%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have
been HK$235,000 higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gain/losses on translation
of RMB-denominated bank
balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continueq)

(0

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, if TWD had
weakened/strengthened by 5%
against the USD with all other
variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have
been HK$381,000 higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on
translation of USD-denominated
bank balances and debt securities
classified as available-for-sale
investment.

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from bank deposits, bank balances
and bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2015, bank
borrowings of the Group are fixed
interest rate borrowings and
expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risks.

Bank deposits and bank balances
held at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continueqd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest

(i)

rate risk (Continued)

Other than bank deposits, bank
balances and bank borrowings, the
Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities.
The Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk associated with the effects
of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of the market interest rates
on its cash flows is not deemed to
be substantial in the view of
management based on the nature
of the assets and liabilities.

As at 31 December 2016, if the
interest rates had been 50 basis-
points higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
HK$829,000 (2015 HK$563,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest income on
bank deposits and bank balances.

Price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the
fair values of equity securities
decreased as a result of changes
in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from available-for-
sale equity investment (Note 16) as
at 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
(iif) — Price risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, if the fair
values of the equity investment
classified as available-for-sale
financial assets had been 10%
higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the
Group’s equity would have been
HK$3,167,000 higher/lower (2015:
HK$3,110,000), respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from debt securities
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, trade and other receivables,
restricted bank deposits, fixed deposits
with original maturity date more than
three months and bank balances. The
carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. The credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with
reference to the financial position of the
debtors, past experience and other
factors.

The Group has policies in place to
ensure that the sales of products are
made to customers with appropriate
credit histories and the Group performs
regular credit evaluations of its major
customers.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continueqd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

The majority of the Group’s trade
receivables is due for maturity within 60
days and largely comprises amounts
receivable from business customers.
Management does not expect any
significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.

About 77% (2015: 88%) of total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2016
were due from the Group’s largest five
customers. No significant collectability
issues have been identified in the past.

Restricted bank deposits, fixed deposits
with original maturity date more than
three months and bank balances are
deposited in reputable banks.
Management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these banks.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability
to settle the payables of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the date of the statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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M EEREE)

31 RMBEABRREZEGE)
) HEBELEEE)

TRINNAEENEREER
ERMBRRARBEEALN I
B #7412 ] 4% FR AR A 2 HR AR
BETEO DT c ERABED
CHEABANARMBANRER

E o
Between
Less than 1t05
1 year years Total

PR—F —ERF #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT TFTHET TEET

At 31 December 2016 R —RF

+=HA=+—8
Trade payables FEASTBR 5K 85,553 — 85,553
Bills payables ERNERE 33,415 — 33,415
Accruals and other payables FERTFIA R HAb

AN 8,260 — 8,260

127,228 — 127,228

At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—RF

+=-A=+—H
Bank borrowings RITE K 31,235 = 31,235
Trade payables FEASBR 3K 143,272 — 143,272
Accruals and other payables FERTSRIA R H Ath

AN 10,426 = 10,426
Note payable EAEE 10,000 10,000 20,000

194,933 10,000 204,933
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continueqd)

3.2

3.3

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-asset ratio. The ratio is calculated as
total debt divided by total assets. Total debt is
calculated as interest-bearing borrowings. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares and sell
assets to reduce debt.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which
remained unchanged from prior year, was to
maintain a net cash position. As at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the
Group has a net cash position and the
aggregate balances of unrestricted bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents
exceeded the total interest-bearing debt by
HK$174,126,000 (2015: HK$114,508,000).

Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are
analysed by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets, including cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, and trade and other
receivables; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and other payables
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the statement of financial position date
across the three levels.

3

wa B RRME

M EEREE)

3.3

D ABEME ()

BRT R BEENBREIN - &
EEMAENABRNEME
A AREEGIPIMER) K
& (AR A E%)(F2[E) -

. EEMAEGFEATEED
Bk A (DIETHRBA)
(837) -

AEBeRMEECANEE B
RekReFEEY ZRHIRTE
RE ~ MR N B A UK A e
AEEzERAE BREMNERX
KREMENR  aREIHEER
o HREEEQAAEEMAS

REHEL R —FzeMEERAE
s BEREMGTEEFET
BREEAABENES - REEAN
mE ' EWEELAABENEAE
ERBEUeRIAERZEITH
BHMEBREREORSREFTRMG
atoe

TR =8 A& B R R KA
BRAnBEFEZERTIAREE -

BXXEBEHER-XAF 2016 F ;K

139



140

FeMBRERME

es fo the Consolidated Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HKEEREE)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AAREEME(E)
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2016
R=-ZFE—X"E+=-A=+—H
ZRAREEE
Level 1 Level 2  Level 3 Total
F1E 2 E3E F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET TFET TFTHER
Recurring fair value REMEAREE
measurements i E
Asset: BEE:
Available-for-sale financial Al 4 & 5 Bl
asset: BE:
— Unlisted equity investment — 3F EmMRHER & = = 31,671 31,671
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2015
RZE—RF+=-A=+—H
ZANEERFE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E FE2E SE3E it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FAERT FTAERT FTAER
Recurring fair value REMEDAREE
measurements T2
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial Al E S
assets: BEE:
— Unlisted debt investment — FEFHEKEE 1,184 — — 1,184
— Unlisted equity investment — 3F Em R HER & — — 31,101 31,101
1,184 — 31,101 32,285

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2
and 3 during the year (2015: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

@)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. The instrument is
included in level 1. Instrument included in
level 1 comprises the open-ended
unlisted fund which mainly invested in
debt securities with quoted bid price in
an active market and classified as
available-for-sale financial assets.
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FeMBRERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BBREBERGE)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DREEME (&)
(b)  Financial instruments in level 3 b) ZE3EHZHEE
The following table presents the changes TREFREE_ZT - EFEE=
in level 3 instruments for the vyears T—RAF+-A=+—HLHF
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015: EE3BIL A 2 #F):

Unlisted equity investment

FETRERE
2015
—T—hF
HK$'000
T T
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 31,101 =
Additions 290 — 23,954
Change in value recognised in RE M2 E TR
other comprehensive income EBEZH 570 7,147
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 31,671 31,101
Change in unrealised gains for the REXRTAH M2 E
year included in other Wk 2 REBR W 2
comprehensive income at the e
end of the year 570 7147
The Group’s unlisted available-for-sale ANEEE LT A H SRR
equity investment consists of preferred BRiE—RHALECEETZE
shares issued by a private entity. The fair LR -FIFBEZEERZAR
value of the preferred shares held is EBEDERAREEEES D
derived by using option-pricing methods EoBREEAESL  miXEZ
to allocate the equity value of the entity, IREEEARDARZSETE
which is implied from the issue prices of Fris R R AT LR A Bl B
recent transactions and justified by HERBTR o
comparable company valuation multiples
approach.

142 Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016



3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEkEERE)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DAREEME (&)
(b)  Financial instruments in level 3 b) HIEHzHEE &)
(Continued)
Below is a summary of significant 3B E FE T A S AR R
unobservable inputs to the valuation of HEHBEZEARTABREG A
the unlisted available-for-sale equity HiE HEREEHXEIN:
investment, together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis:
Significant
Valuation technique and key unobservable Sensitivity of fair value to
inputs input Value the input
EXRTABE WMABBZAREBE
RERTREERAHIE WAE EBE #HRE
Market Comparable Volatility 40.87% 10% increase/decrease in
Companies and equity value (2015: 38.52%) the volatility would result
allocation with option-pricing in decrease/increase in
method that are estimated fair value by
based on recent transaction approximately
prices, volatility, risk-free HK$187,000/
interest rate, time-to- HK$144,000 (2015:
maturity, and dividend yield HK$282,000/
HK$277,000).
TSALBRRAARREBES KIE 40.87% RMBIE R A10% - #
B R EARE EBIE 2 i Et & (ZE—h%F: LSRR BERD, ML
WATBHRSER KIE - 38.52%) 187,000 JT,144,000
ERERERA X B HRR &K BLT(ZE—hF:
B E R 282,000/ 7T /277,000
HBIT) °
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Fe M BRERME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under

circumstances.

41 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The

accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

@)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated selling
expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products
of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
consumer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimations by each date of the
statement of financial position to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

41

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

©)

©

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as trading
and available-for-sale financial assets
securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of each reporting
period.

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
the jurisdiction in which the Group
operates. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such
determination is made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

41 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(d)  Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for
impairment of trade receivables based on
an estimate of the recoverability of these
receivables. Provisions are applied to
trade receivables, where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment of trade
receivables requires the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying
amount of receivables and the provision
for impairment losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been
identified as the directors of the Company. The
directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources
and determine the operating segments based on
these reports.

The directors determine that the Group has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@)  Display products segment; and
(b)  Optics products segment

The directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of revenue
and results of each segment and do not assess the
performance based on segment assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE M EHRERKNE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@)

5 ZoHERE)

The segment information provided to the () UNUTERHTEFHE-_T—XFK
directors for the reportable segments for the —E—RAF+-_A=t+—HBIFEA
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is WEDHHER:
as follows:
Display products Optics products Total
BREM KEBER Fob
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-AF mESEEE-E A F RS AT e
SLGH HKS'000 | GLEH|  HK$'000 | GLEHlE|  HK$'000
TERT FHET FTER FET FTER FET
Segment revenue (all from S EBUA (2 FR
external customers) BINERE) 1,123,950 1,272,975 26,048 1,199 1,149,998 1,274,174
Segment results DEIEE 95,335 95,605 58,560 (8,030) 153,895 87,575
Unallocated operating costs AOBEER AR (55,017) (55,226)
Finance costs, net BB A FE (1,348) (322)
Profit before income tax B BT 45 B AT A B 97,530 32,027
Other segment information: Hitp 5 H&E R :
Gain on disposal of HEMB AR K=
subsidiaries = = 26,481 = 26,481 =
Gain on Profit Guarantee i IR B M — = 21,238 = 21,238 =

BXXEBEHER-XAF 2016 F ;K
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FeMBRERME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 4% #&¥ (&)

(b)  The Group’s revenues from its major products by HEZE—XRFE-_ZT—HF+=A
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and =+—HLFE AEEREEFE
2015 are as follows: EmZWAEF AT :

2016 2015

= LN T FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THER T T

TFT-LCD panels and modules TFT-LCD M ik & 18 48 1,051,095 1,076,227
Driver integrated circuits B 2 25 & A B 3K 58,032 156,180
Optics products HEE M 26,048 1,199
Polarisers 1w SR 7,871 31,436
Others Hth 6,952 9,132
1,149,998 1,274 174

(c) Segment revenue by customers’ geographical (c) REFHEMNBEINDBUYA
location
During the years ended 31 December 2016 HE-Z—R"EER-ZE—1F1+=A
and 2015, most of the Group’s revenues were =+ —HIEFE AEEKRFTH KA
derived in Hong Kong, where the Group’s HREBES  AEBINREBRARE
products were delivered by the Group to its RIFEmM °
customers.

2016 2015

= It — T IF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THER F# T

Hong Kong BB 1,132,080 1,244,104
The PRC a3 17,424 28,893
Taiwan ae 494 1,177
1,149,998 1,274 174
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenues from major customers who have
individually contributed to 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group are disclosed as
follows:

GeMBRRME

7 BEF (&)
) REEEEP(BEAREBKA0%
A L) A RBEMT -

2016 2015

—E—XF —E—h4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TA&TT

Customer A ZEA 192,748 167,160
Customer B ®FB 168,579 143,110
361,327 310,270

The above two customers are included in the
display products segment.

An analysis of the Group’s non-current segment
assets (other than available-for-sale financial

FRRBFEPFABTRERD GA

e REEMNE AKBZIERBDE
BE(MBRARLESREE) DN

assets) by location of assets is as follows: N
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Total
' f st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHET F&T FH&ET FHET
As at 31 December 2016: RZB-XRE+ZA=+—H:
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1 % - BB K & & 2,123 1,070 3,193
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 2,000 1,122 3,122
4123 2,192 6,315
As at 31 December 2015: R-E-HF+=ZH=+—H:
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - B 5 K & & 2,277 925 4,784
Goodwill mE — — 6,519
Other intangible assets Hith & E 2,000 1,122 6,033
4,277 2,047 17,336

BxXxXEFRLDA 2016 £&
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mEMBRERMT

6 REVENUE 6 WA
Revenue represents the sales of display panels, WABEEBRTER XBERRIEBAS
optics products and related electronic components TEHEFINRAALFB WA ©

to external parties.

7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7 HiwE (EE)EE

2016 2015
—E-KEF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) HEKTB AR K=

(K £28) 26,481 —
Gain on Profit Guarantee (Note 2.1.1) i IR 78 I 2

(Kt a£2.1.1) 21,238 —
Net exchange loss 5 B EFE (769) (1,893)
Others B 117 144

47,067 (1,749)
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 RHUHEEEINEH

Expenses included cost of sales, distribution and STASHERA  DHEEEERAST  — KK
selling expenses, general and administrative THRAZEMEARAZREZHNERS T
expenses and research and development expenses ™

are analysed as follows:

2016 2015

= s —E—RfF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER T T

Cost of inventories sold HEF ' KA 935,418 1,054,067

Processing and sub-contracting expenses MIRINEE A 72,518 92,502

Transportation expenses B E A 6,615 8,513

Provision for obsolete inventories (Note 17)  BRETF S B (K1:517) 14,390 12,669
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SAD BN &

— Audit services — TR 1,680 1,550

— Non-audit services — FEBRH 452 179

Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) 1B B & MR X (#i29) 34,356 38,180

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #7% - Bi= N & EHETE 2,173 2,006

Amortisation of intangible assets B A = 471 514

Operating lease rentals in respect of buildings EF &< HEH & 7,584 7,236
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GeMBRRME

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EERAMX
2016 2015
= _—_T—hF
HK$°’000 HK$’000
FTET F#& T
Short-term employee benefits (Note) HHEERA (A E) 32,721 36,336
Post-employment benefits & B R IK1E A
— defined contribution plans — TEFMH KRGS 1,635 1,844
Total employee benefit expenses, EERAMAZ 2R -
including directors’ remuneration PREESHE 34,356 38,180

Note: Short-term employee benefits represent salary, wages,
bonus paid to employees, staff quarter expenses and
insurance premium for staff insurance schemes.

(@) Post-employment benefits — defined
contribution plans

No forfeited contributions for the Group is
available to reduce the contribution payment in
the future years. Contributions to schemes
vest immediately.

K EREESEIEMNMEENTS - TEREA

ETIREEBAUREBEIRBAENRRS -

BEERAKERN — TEHKE

7R 5% [ 43 A2 45 0% MK HO R R A B R
RRFERFEK - HEFE A KL
ARE -
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REMBRRME
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose remuneration were
the highest in the Group for the year include
three directors (2015: three) whose
remuneration are reflected in the analysis
shown in Note 31. The emoluments payable to
the remaining two (2015: two) individuals
during the year are as follows:

9

BEENRAX(F

EEBBHFAL

FAREBELERSFHALRRE
ZREF(CE-RF=R) AF
RN EEBIFTE DN EF - F
NEMNSBTRA(CE—RF MA)
ALZBEnT

2015
—ET—RF
HK$'000
FE T
Basic salaries, staff quarter expenses, H“ATE  BIFE®
other allowances and benefits in kind ~ FIz « E A EEL K
EtE A 2,759 2,586
Discretionary bonus )15 B AL 197 302
Contribution to pension scheme BRIRETEIH R 36 36
2,992 2,924

The number of highest paid non-director

AERFMNFUATEBENFE SR

individuals whose remunerations for the year SEHMATHOAZSDT :
fell within the following bands:
2015
—E—hEF
Emolument bands: B < &5 & :
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/8 7T &
1,500,000/ JT 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 Jt &
2,000,0007% 7T 1 1

For the year ended 31 December 2016, no
remuneration (2015: Nil) was paid by the
Group to a director or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office, and no arrangement under which a
director or the five highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any of the
remuneration.
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10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE M EHRERKNE

10 MBBEAFRE

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET

Finance income

BB A

Interest income on pledged bank deposits EEARITERF E

WA 194 727
Interest income on bank deposits RITF A B WA 223 374
417 1,101
Finance costs B%E A
Interest expense on: AR & TH S 7 &
s
Bank advances from factored receivables RIBERGRHVIRTT
EE N — (39)
Bank borrowings RITEE (156) (229)
Factoring charges RIEE R (1,609) (1,155)
(1,765) (1,423)
Finance costs, net W5 ERFE (1,348) (322)
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FeMBRERME

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit during the year arising in or derived from Hong
Kong. Taxation on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

FREHRER

FEREMNERIANFRAETEELEIREB
BENGFTERB AN BEHE16.5% (=F
—hF:16.5% KT IR R - HfbitR 2
ERBABENRBIIRIEARENELLE
BXR/BAEERNBITHERAE -

2016 2015
N — T aOfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA T
Current income tax: EHFEH
Current income tax on profits for the year FEANHE & 5
P55 9,331 6,658
Adjustments in respect of prior years HIBAEFERN AR (44) (20)
Total current income tax EHFS T A 9,287 6,638
Deferred income tax — Origination and BIEFGEH — EER
reversal of temporary differences (Note 23)  # B = &
(Hti#23) (92) (53)
Income tax expense FstiE R 9,195 6,585
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GeMBRRME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FBHNERE)

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income 7 55 [ B R A4S 5 AR JE | P15 A5 B
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would FAASEFEAMEROTEMEE£MNE
arise using the tax rate applicable to the Group as WEeREAMER  ABHMT:

follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT T 7T

Profit before income tax B BT 15 %% B A A 97,530 32,027

Tax calculated at Hong Kong tax rate of BB BB E16.5%TH

16.5% (2015: 16.5%) WRIE(ZE—HF:
16.5%) 16,092 5,284
Tax effects of: NTEENHBETE:
— Different taxation rate in other — Hhal )z BB &
jurisdictions 7[R F 2 (40) 37
— Income not subject to tax — HAZHAKA (7,875) (5)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — A~ AI/E 157 & EY
-t 375 740
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax — & 3 5 A I £2 #E 32 &
losses HIEE B (253) (334)
— Tax losses for which no deferred income — 3 #7E :7iE iE T8 74
tax asset was recognised BEMNMIAEE 940 883
Adjustment in respect of prior years HRTFENHAE (44) (20)
Income tax expense FrisiiE R 9,195 6,585
Effective tax rate B = 9.4% 20.6%
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Fe M BRERME

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2016 is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Basic
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2015 is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares deemed to be in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2015.

In determining the weighted average number of
ordinary shares deemed to be in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2015, the 163,687,151
ordinary shares issued as part of the consideration
of the common control combination as mentioned in
Note 2.1.1 have been regarded as if these shares
had been in issue since 1 January 2015.

12

BRER

HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=1+—HILFE®
BRERNER VIR AAREZEBARN
EBRREE—_T—A"F+_A=1+—H
It FERB TR NEFSH
H-HEZZT—RAFT+_A=+—HILHF
ENEREARAF DEAQNRERIFTEA
BEFBEREEENEE_T—AF+=
A=+—BLEFEMNERTEEBR 2 NE
FHEEE o

REFHE-_"T-—RAF+_A=+—H1t
FEHRBEET LB 2 MEFHIE
B - YE AN S0 15 it 2 R 4 4] & 6 2 &6
2B T 317 H9163,687,151 A% I 38 A% & 1
BAERNZERME-_ZT—AF—A—H
RO BT o

2015
—T—AOF
Profit attributable to equity holders of the AARIERIFE ARG
Company (HK$'000) M (FET) 90,729 27,732
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B %17 & @& 2 N
in issue (thousands) 15 B (F gD 1,483,687 1,483,687
Basic and diluted earnings per share EREARAREEZF
(HK cents per share) (BB M) 6.12 1.87

For the purpose of determining the diluted earnings
per share amount, no adjustment has been made to
the basic earnings per share amount for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as the Group
had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during these years.
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13

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list

December 2016:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

of subsidiaries at 31 n=

13

B B 2 ]

T

T —NF+=

GeMBRRME

A=+—BHHBAR

Proportion of

ordinary  Proportion of
shares directly ordinary
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued held by the shares held by
establishment and kind  Principal activities share capital/paid up Company the Group
Name of legal entity and place of operation capital (%) (%)
ARRAERRE FEEARAZ
MR LR BRITRS/ ZEBER B EER LA
A8 RiaERER TEERRBERY BARKEE (%) (%)
Rightone BVI, limited liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company at no par value
Rightone RERZHEERAR REZEKR 10,000/ M E & R
Shinwa Technology Limited BV, limited liability Holding of patents 1 ordinary share at no = 100%
company par value
HERRBERAA HERAEBARAR HBEEF T B A
Sinosky Resources Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share at no - 100%
company par value
Sinosky Resources Limited HBRETEEERAR RERR 1REEEL AR
Dexing Investment Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share at no - 100%
company par value
Dexing Investment Limited KBERAZHBERAR REZER RERELAR
Yuan Tai Investment Limited Samoa, limited liability  Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of = 100%
company USD1 each
BaREARAF EEZERAR REER 1008 B R EEI1E T
LRk
Perfect Display Limited Hong Kong, limited Trading of display panels and 38,000,000 ordinary - 100%
liability company related electronic shares
components in Hong Kong
BEXBETERAH EBBERAR REBHERTARKEAEF 38,000,0008 L &K
i
Perfect Sky Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited Electronic product application 1 ordinary share = 100%
liability company development in Hong Kong
BXMEBRAF EARRAR REBETSTEREARE 1RTAK
Dexing Technology Development Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding 1 ordinary share - 100%
liability company
BAMBREREBAR EABRAR REER 1R E B R
Dexing Materials Technology (Dongguan)  The PRC, limited Not yet commenced business ~ USD50,000 - 100%
Company Limited liability company
EAMHHR(RR)ERDA HEBRAH ARRER 50,000% 7T
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FeMBRERME

13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

13 KB 2T (&)

Proportion of

ordinary  Proportion of
shares directly ordinary
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued held by the shares held by
establishment and kind Principal activities share capital/paid up Company the Group
Name of legal entity and place of operation capital (%) (%)
ARRAEERE FKEEEZ
AL BERITRH/ EERLE  EERRH
A% REGEEER TEXBRBEHE BEARAFE (%) (%)
Yuan Mei Xin Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited Wholesaling, import and export  USD1,000,000 - 100%
Company Limited liability company of display panels and related
electronic components and
provision of technical
support and related services
in the PRC
BXERRRINERAR FEERAF RPEREBEREREREBES 1,000000% T
BEORLE  EAREA -
AR 4R Bt B i SR e
PR %
Yuan Tian Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited Research and development, USD100,000 - 100%
Company Limited liability company provision of technical
support and related services
in the PRC
BXRBHZRINEBRAR HEERAR MR B ERRERITZER  100000% T
18 B R %5
Yuan Tai Electronics Company Limited Taiwan, limited liability ~ Not yet commenced business 500,000 ordinary - 100%
company shares of TWD10
each
AAETRHERAA REARRA REE X 500,000/% & i {8 ¥
a0 L AR
Perfect Shiny Samoa, limited liability  Investment holding 500,000 ordinary = 100%
company shares of USD1
each
] EELERAH REZR 500,000 & REE
1ETZEBR
Perfect Shiny Technology (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Design and development and 1 ordinary share - 100%
liability company sale of applied optics-related
products in Hong Kong
BHEH (BB ER A BRAERRA EEBR  RERHEEEAX 1RTER
BEM
Perfect Shiny Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited Sales, research and RMB1,000,000 - 100%
Company Limited liability company development of optics-
related products in PRC
BB (R AR AR HEERAR RPBEHERRE L SRHEER A K¥1,0000007T
Skyteam Resources Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share at no - 100%
company par value
Skyteam Resources Limited EBRAHSERAR HREER 1R E R AR
Naruto Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited Not yet commenced business 10,000,000 ordinary = 100%
liability company shares
BMRRERAE BEERAA RARER 10,000,000 & i A

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31
December 2015 amounted to HK$15,248,000, which
is attributed to Shinyoptics Corporation
(“Shinyoptics”), a subsidiary disposed of during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (Note 28).

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$5,656,000
(2015: HK$3,435,000) are held in the PRC and are
subject to local exchange control regulations. These
local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country,
other than through normal dividends.

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary
with material non-controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised financial
information for Shinyoptics.

GeMBRRME

13 KB 28 (&)

EXRFERMER

R-E—RE+-A=1+—HHEER#E
8 48 %E 1% 15,248,000/8 T+ H B R M
ERDAERAR(HIAE]D  ZAAAE
REBEE-_ZT—R"E+-_HA=+—BILtEE
& 2 Bt B 2 =] (Bt 3E28) °

B KPR
4 KB HI1F 55,656,000 L (Z 2 —H
F : 3,435,000/ 70) FIEHRE - X EHA

SMNEEBIFFRE o WEINEBE GRS SGE
SEHBRCGEBETRERIERIN

BEEARFERERZHBARZHEY

TXHIWE IR B BEREER -

Summarised statement of financial position HEB MK
2015
—T—h#F
HK$'000
FAET
Current: TEH)
Assets BE 26,266
Liabilities =N (866)
Total current net assets MENE EFEES 25,400
Non-current: JEmED
Assets BE 5,677
Liabilities =N (495)
Total non-current net assets JEMEN B EFE AT 5,182
Net assets BEFE 30,582
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary
with material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 KB 2R (&)

BER (&)

75 2 2 H W ot 7%

BEERFERERZHNBRARAZHEY

2016 2015
=l —T IF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TER T T
Revenue WA 1,394 1,425
Loss before income tax bR PT1S BRI E 18 (4,881) (4,680)
Income tax credit FriS i % 80 87
Other comprehensive loss Hfib 2 mEEE - (1,580)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBEERE (4,801) 6,173)
Total comprehensive loss allocated to AT IEERER 2
non-controlling interests >HBERE (2,394) (3,078)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XN TIEERERS
% 8. — —
Summarised statement of cash flows WER 2 E X
2016 2015
LN — T afF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER T T
Net cash used in operating activities KEFTEMAFER S (3,980) (3,241)
Net cash generated from investing activites % & BB E £ FH & 3,976 1,820
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 38 & NIR&SEWR D
F R (4) (1,421)

The information above is the amount before inter-

company elimination.
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GeMBRRME

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ¥ ¥ - BER®RE

Furniture
Leasehold Moulds and and office Motor
improvements  machinery equipment vehicles Total
HE BE KRER
BFHEB k#E BAZERE "RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT FHET
At 1 January 2015 R-T—RFE—A—H
Cost BN 1,418 1,037 1,492 3,360 7,307
Accumulated depreciation SR (987) (36) (744) (759) (2,526)
Net book amount REFE 431 1,001 748 2,601 4,781
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT—HE&E
+TZA=+—-HLEEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 431 1,001 748 2,601 4,781
Currency translation differences SN E ZRE @) (40) @1 (20) (86)
Additions #m 34 1,323 72 666 2,095
Depreciation charge EXH (157) (702) (340) (807) (2,008)
Closing net book amount FARREEE 303 1,582 459 2,440 4,784
At 31 December 2015 RZT—RF
+-A=+—AH
Cost BN 1,445 2,318 1,526 3,996 9,285
Accumulated depreciation Rt E (1,142) (736) (1,067) (1,556) (4,501)
Net book amount BREFE 303 1,582 459 2,440 4,784
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_ZT—RE
+TZA=1+—-HLEEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 303 1,582 459 2,440 4,784
Currency translation differences INEEEEE @) (29) (22) @1) (70)
Additions & m = 957 161 692 1,810
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) & KB 2 ) (47 i£28) = (1,158) = = (1,158)
Depreciation charge HEZH (151) (821) (313) (888) (2,173)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 148 537 285 2,223 3,193
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+-A=+—AH
Cost KA 1,433 537 1,581 4,639 8,190
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (1,285) = (1,296) (2,416) (4,997)
Net book amount BREFE 148 537 285 2,223 3,193
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BEEE
Club
Goodwill Patents memberships Total
Gk =55 EEs Foy
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FHB T FH T F& T
At 1 January 2015 R=ZFE—H&F—HA—H
Cost (D% 6,791 3,747 3,122 13,660
Accumulated amortisation Rt = (179) = (179)
Net book amount AREFE 6,791 3,568 3,122 13,481
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-ZT—RF+=-A=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FYER®FE 6,791 3,568 3,122 13,481
Currency translation differences SNEEITE =R (272) (143) - (415)
Amortisation charge LB A - (514) - (514)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 6,519 2,911 3,122 12,552
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H
Cost AR 6,519 3,597 3,122 13,238
Accumulated amortisation S 3] = (686) = (686)
Net book amount REFE 6,519 2,911 3,122 12,552
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_T— X "&+-A=+—H
IFFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 6,519 2,911 3,122 12,552
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) & BT BB A |l (4 £28) (6,519) (2,440) - (8,959)
Amortisation charge BB A - (471) - (471)
Closing net book amount FREEFE = = 3,122 3,122
At 31 December 2016 RZE—AR"FE+=-A=+—H
Cost AR = = 3,122 3,122
Accumulated amortisation g 3 = = = =
Net book amount R T F (B = = 3,122 3,122
Amortisation of HK$471,000 (2015: HK$514,000) is B E A HR471,0008 T (ZE— R F:
included in “Research and development expenses”. 514,000 )T A [T R ERZIA -
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 15 BEEEE)
Impairment testing of goodwill mERENR
Goodwill is attributable to Shinyoptics. EENEHEARMMYNE -
The recoverable amount of Shinyoptics as at 31 R-ZE—RAF+_A=+—"H"  HILKE
December 2015 was determined based on a value ZAIKE S BERABESREER B
in use calculation using cash flow projections based BERHERSERFHE B ESE - U
on financial budgets approved by management FAREBMEE AFHUIICESRETD
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the FR%RIEREES - FTEANERET R
five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate BHEMIAEEECEB o RBEHER
of 3%. The growth rate used did not exceed the K o W mE T F20.2% 8837 KB o
long-term average growth rate for the business in {58 AR 2 Bh 3R SR B A I IR 5 7 4R A =
which Shinyoptics operated. The cash flows were fax o

discounted using a discount rate of 20.2%. The
discount rate used was pre-tax and reflects specific
risks related.

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 16 AItHELMEE
ASSETS
2016 2015
—E—XREF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
At 1 January Kn—H—H 1,344
Currency translation differences SNEE T = RE - (54)
Additions 30 = 23,954
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) &S B AQA
(H1:£28) (1,184) -
Net gains transfer to equity ER RS S FEE 570 7,041
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 31,671 32,285
Less: Current portion o B E = —
Non-current portion ERBEH D 31,671 32,285
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16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 16 AtHEESRHEEE)

ASSETS (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets include the AtHESHEEBETYSE:

following:

2016 2015
—E—E —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FA& T

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value JELETRERE  BA
(Note (a)) R EEH @) 31,671 31,101

Unlisted debt investment, at quoted price FEEMEBKE

(Note (b)) &R E (AT i b)) - 1,184
31,671 32,285

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in At HESMEERETLTE-

USD.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the R EBHFAENRAGERRADE

reporting date is the carrying value of the debt RUHLESREECBEBREZERE

investment classified as available-for-sale financial =N

assets.

Notes: B az -

(@) The fair value of the unlisted equity investment is based on (@) SEETRIEIRE 2 AR BETHIREE A ER
comparable transaction method and equity value allocation NERZZERAEEBEXELREBED
with option-pricing method performed by an independent fEBE - AR BEBARBEREREIEN
valuer. The fair value is within level 3 of the fair value (Fff 7£3.3) °

hierarchy (Note 3.3).

(b) The fair value of the unlisted debt investment is based on (b) WELETEBRENAABEIZREYE -
quoted price. The fair value is within level 1 of the fair AREBEERAABERERKNFIE (WM
value hierarchy (Note 3.3). 3.3) °
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INVENTORIES 17 78
2016 2015
= s —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Work in progress £ & 66,764 22,955
Finished goods 5% X ih 124,209 78,851
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories B RETERE (23,450) (24,695)
167,523 77,111

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in “cost of sales” amounted to
HK$935,418,000 (2015: HK$1,054,067,000) for the
year (Note 8).

The Group charged to the consolidated income
statement an amount of HK$14,390,000 (2015:
HK$12,669,000) in respect of the net amount of the
provision for obsolete inventories, loss on obsolete
inventories and write-down of inventories to their net
realisable value for the year. These amounts have
been included in the cost of sales in the
consolidated income statement.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NEEERBAITAATHEERAINTF
& B 7N 5935,418,0005 T (Z 8 — R4 :
1,054,067,0007% 7T ) (Bff 5£8) °

REERFANEEREFTERBEFH - R
EFEBEERMURGTEEEAIEREER
Mk 4 & W &= 3= B & B8 414,390,000 7T
—Z—F4F 12,669,000/ 7T) I HEFKIE
BEEAGAERGTRAMNBEEKRARIAT ©

18 FE W AR 7K I E i B I K

2016 2015
—E-XREF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx T
Trade receivables (Note (a)) JE W2 BR B (M7 2t (a) 47,696 75,472
Bills receivables (Note (a)) FEWE IR ([ 3t (a) 32,956 123,209
80,652 198,681

Receivable from Mr. Cheng (Note 29 (c)fii) & U 85 5 4 FR 18
(K1 :£29(c)(ii) 11,238 —

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERF - & & &
H fth FE UK 5,895 4,414
97,785 203,095
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 BWERRKR HMERRGE)

(Continued)

Notes: B iz -

(@) The Group generally grants credit periods of 30 to 120 days. (a) AEE— BB HI0OE120KHEEH - BiE%
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on FH G E R E AR R R ) BR B 5 AT 1A
invoice date is as follows: T~

2016 2015

—E-XEF —ET—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

0-30 days 0-30K& 41,777 106,393
31-60 days 31-60K 29,091 78,214
61-90 days 61-90K 7,138 13,193
91-180 days 91-180K 2,646 881
80,652 198,681

(b) As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade receivables of (b) RZB—RE+-A=+—HB x£EEHH
HK$3,957,000 (2015: HK$1,044,000) were past due but not 1B 2R R 1B 1) JE W AR 5K /8,957,000 7T (=& —
impaired. These trade receivables relate to a number of 1,044,000 L) - ZERKBEREL E
independent customers for whom there is no significant EEAVBRRENBYIELAR  REBEL
financial difficulty and based on past experience, the B ZESeHREAKE -
overdue amounts can be recovered.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were past due B EERRENERERNERESTOT

but not impaired is as follows:

2016 2015
—B-AF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T

Amounts past due B H R IR
1-30 days 1-30K 906 196
31-60 days 31-60K 1,862 832
61-90 days 61-90K 700 =
91-120 days 91-120K 489 16

3,957 1,044
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19

GeMBRRME

18 FE U B 3k R Lt JE WO (A7)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Htat - (&)
(© The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other () 7N 55 B E Ui BR R R B At B MR 2 BR TED (B AR A
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: TE®E:
2016 2015
—g-Af —=—3%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHAT
HKS$ BT 12,342 796
usD ETT 82,978 199,612
RMB AR 2,378 1,895
TWD etk 87 792
97,785 203,095
(d) The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate (d) ERERREMERRZ AR BEEERR

their carrying amounts.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
FIXED DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY DATE MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS AND RESTRICTED BANK

19

BEEE -

ReRBESEEY  REPAE
B =18 Az E 7 R K Z R
RITHEK

DEPOSITS
2016 2015
—E-XF —ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TER T
Total bank deposits, bank balances and cash $R1T7Ezk ~ SR1TAE R
He B 198,828 166,024
Less: Restricted bank deposits included in 3 : 5T AR & EEH
current assets (Note) ZREIRITFERK
(Bt 5t) (24,702) (20,316)
Less: Fixed deposits with original maturity date & : /& ZI| 57 B 2 8 =&
more than three months Az EHER — (17,755)
Cash and cash equivalents ReMASEEY 174,126 127,953

Note: As at 31 December 2016, bank deposits of HK$24,702,000
(2015: HK$20,316,000) were secured for the Group’s
banking facilities including borrowings, trade finance and

other general banking facilities (Note 22).

Brat

RZEBE-—ARNF+-A=+—-8 |RITER
24,702,000/ 7T (=F — A% : 20,316,000 7T)
REAKERTRE(BERGR BIRER
H i — RIRITARE) w9 3E 9 (T 5E22) ©
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 19 RERREEEY - KIBPEE
FIXED DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL B=ERzEHPEFRARZR
MATURITY DATE MORE THAN THREE RITER(E)

MONTHS AND RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s total bank AEBRITHER  RITERRBE 2EE®
deposits, bank balances and cash are denominated BT EEETE:
in the following currencies:

2016 2015
—E—XREF —ET—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA& T
HK$ BT 55,135 6,966
UsD ETT 137,819 122,619
RMB AR 4,847 22197
TWD Ak 1,027 14,242
198,828 166,024
20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 EA

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
—E-AE —T—hfF
t=A=+-8 t=A=+-~8
Number Number

of shares Amount of shares Amount
gl gE| o R EE k]
(thousands) Gl (thousands) HK$’000
(F &) FHET (F1) F&E T

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 & & &3 A%
each 0.0178 7T 5,000,000 50,000 5,000,000 50,000
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20 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 20 WA (&)
Ordinary
Number of shares of
shares HK$0.01 each
BREBR
iigvig 4= 0.017%& T
HK$'000
FETT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAZ:
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—HA—H 1,320,000,000 13,200
Issue of new shares as consideration for BT DIER LR
common control combination (Note) =5 & G R (B
(K1 3E) 163,687,151 1,637
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 and RZ-ZZE—AF+-A=
31 December 2016 +—B —ZT—F
—A—Bk=ZZF—RX
F+=ZH=+—H 1,483,687,151 14,837
Note: As part of the consideration of the Acquisition pursuant to Wat: BEZGE FRRBFEREZ—H5
the Agreement, 163,687,151 ordinary shares were issued 163,687,151 LB E R =T —RAFMA =+
on 30 April 2015 (Note 2.1.1). A 277 (F sE2.1.1) ©
21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BNERREMGENR
2016 2015
—E-XREF —ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables (Note (a)) JE 15 BR 5K (47 72 (a) 85,553 143,272
Bills payables (Note (a)) FE R I& (FT it (@) 33,415 —
118,968 143,272
Deposits received from customers W EFPZ % 22,089 10,727
Accruals and other payables FE ST RIE K E A R4S 3R 8,314 10,430
149,371 164,429
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21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on
invoice date is as follows:

FE A BR 3R B HL BB Y 3R (A7)

wat -

(@) IRIR R AT H A0 R AR R R B R A AR

DM :

2016 2015
—E-XRF —ZE—-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHBIT
0-30 days 0-30K 98,283 118,563
31-60 days 31-60K 17,416 12,666
61-90 days 61-90K 3,269 11,990
91-180 days 91-180K - 53
118,968 143,272
(o) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables (b) ERNERREMENR RAEREEALE
approximate their fair values. [ERiZEZ
/= i
22 BANK BORROWINGS 22 RITHER

2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T

Short-term bank loans MHRITER

— 31,200

The scheduled repayment date of the Group’s bank
borrowings, as set out in the loan agreements and
without considering the effect of any repayment on
demand clauses were as follows. The analysis below
also represents the Group’s exposure to interest rate
changes on borrowing at the contractual repricing
dates.

ERpEABATEERRERERGERY
ENASBERITIERNEEERHN
T UTOMBREARERETANERN
EERHERERNEESHNRR

2016 2015

=t LN —TAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T

Within 1 year 1F A

- 31,200
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BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 22 RITERE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank RZE—RF+_A=+—H xEER
borrowings as at 31 December 2015 approximated TERFNERHEEEQAREEES - LR
their fair values and were denominated in USD. EJLEME
During the year, the Group’s banking facilities, FAREBERITHE(BREER - BEFRE
including borrowings, trade finance and other REM—RRBITRE) BT FEER
general banking facilities were secured by:
()  bank deposits of HK$24,702,000 as at 31 () RZZE-—RFTZA=+—HHRT
December 2016 (2015: HK$20,316,000) (Note ¥ 724,702,000 T(ZF — R F:
19); 20,316,0007% 7T ) (Fff 5119)
(i) corporate guarantees provided by the (i) ARRRHEZAGER K
Company; and
(i)  cross guarantees among subsidiaries of the (i) MBARZHEZZXRE °
Company.
In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to B EXFTiEIN  AEBEEREETIRT
comply with certain loan covenants imposed by the HETEREH -
banks.
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 23 EEZEFEHER
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as BLEMEHABENDTET
follows:
2016 2015
= _—_T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER F& T
Deferred income tax liabilities: BLEEHAaE:
— to be settled after more than 12 months  — #M121& A& X+t (69) (474)
— to be settled within 12 months — BR12E B At (68) (170)
(137) (644)
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 23 EZFfFEHEE(E)

(Continued)
The movements in deferred income tax liabilities in BERNFRARINERIBITESBRHNEERMS
respect of accelerated tax depreciation during the MBEZBMOT

year are as follows:

2015
—E—hF
HK$'000
T T
Beginning of the year FH (644) (r21)
Currency translation difference SN T B =R = 24
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) unl= A Y EER/NE]
(Kt 5£28) 415 =
Credited to consolidated income statement st AR & WK
(Note 11) (K1 #£11) 92 53
End of the year FR (137) (644)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax iR GE PR 1S 08 B Y Rt T TE B 18 A 6 W e
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation R+ MEBR A AR B A T8 Al &% AT B R 2R FE R
of the related tax benefit through future taxable FESEEBAEE R A~F+A8
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2016, the =t+—H AEETERRELENIEEE
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of 250,000/ JL(= & — A £ : 4,031,000/%8
HK$250,000 (2015: HK$4,031,000) in respect of tax J0) 0 R FTE E518562,0008 T (ZE —H
loss of HK$562,000 (2015: HK$340,000), which will F : 340,000 T KR AFEKRR) - BB
be expired in five years, tax loss of Nil (2015: EE AT (ZF— R : 22,230,000 7T X #
HK$22,230,000), which will be expired in ten years, AT E &R - DA R IE E515665,0007%8
as well as tax loss of HK$665,000 (2015: TL(ZZ — R 1,011,000 72) R 5 B A1
HK$1,011,000) which will not expire under current FOEDERA) ©
tax legislation.
24 DIVIDEND 24 BKRE
2015
—E—RF
HK$'000
BT
Proposed final dividend of HK1.0 cent (2015: &% AHIR &M EE
HK0.5 cent) per ordinary share 108 W(ZFE—5
4 0.5%1l) 14,837 7,418
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CASH GENERATED FROM REELNES
OPERATIONS
2015
—ET—hEF
HK$'000
FAT
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B¢ AT A1 B 97,530 32,027
Adjustments for: AT BIERE
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 28) — H & B A& Uk 2
(K1 7#28) (26,481) —
— Gain on Profit Guarantee (Note 7) — A AR 7E U s
(H17£7) (21,238) —
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W%k BELZHE
equipment (Note 14) & (K7 it14) 2,173 2,006
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 15) — #E & & 85
(Htit15) 471 514
— Finance income — BB A (417) (1,101)
— Finance costs — BBER 1,765 1,423
Operating profit before changes in working — &E & & ZE AL &
capital b 53,803 34,869
Changes in working capital EEE®
— Inventories - FE (92,164) 58,150
— Trade and other receivables — BRI E At
J& Wk 115,793 (92,960)
— Trade and other payables — BRI & HA
J& A~ 3R (14,165) 73,901
Cash generated from operations KEEENHRE 63,267 73,960

Non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
promissory note payable to Mr. Cheng of
HK$10,000,000 was offset against the
compensation receivable arising from the Profit
Guarantee (Note 29(c)(ii)).

The principal non-cash transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2015 were: (i) the issue of
shares as consideration for the Acquisition as
detailed in Note 2.1.1; and (i) the waiving of a
shareholder’s loan of approximately HK$29,349,000
by Mr. Cheng upon completion of the Acquisition as
detailed in Note 2.1.1.

HRREXS

RBEE-_Z—RE+-_A=+—RHILtFE "
JE {3 T 86 4 A 2 A 5, 22 4510,000,0007% 7T
B $5 0 FI R 3B 2= A 2 8 Y (8 3k A (B
F£29(c)(ii)) °

BHE - ZT—AFt+-_A=+—RHILEEN
FEIIRERG A ()VBTRMDERKE
FH 2 REGBHNM FE21.0) 5 R@i)R
I REETHERE  BAEERBBREERLY
29,349,000/ 7T * s IBE A M sE21.1 o
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26

27

28

B 7% R & Y A
COMMITMENTS 26 HEIE
Operating lease commitments — Group companies REBVERAE - SEARAAREA
as lessee
The Group acts as lessee under operating leases. AEBAKEHENEART - REEFH
The Group had future minimum lease payments TAHGEECERE  AEBNRRIN&
under non-cancellable operating leases of buildings EHSFIAT:
as follows:
2015
—E—hF
HK$'000
FHE T
No later than 1 year 1F R 6,036 6,386
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 1418 N5%F R 1,962 726
7,998 7112
These leases typically run for an initial period of one ZEHEMVBER—RAE—EFE -
to four years.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 27 RAEE
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has no material RZEBE—ARFE+-_A=+—8 A&£EBL
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil). BEAHIARBE(CZE—LF |-
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 28 HEKE AT

On 22 December 2016, Perfect Shiny, a subsidiary
of the Group, completed the disposal of the entire
equity interest in Morning Beauty Developments
Limited (the “Disposal”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of Perfect Shiny, to an independent third party, for a
cash consideration of HK$48,000,000. The principal
business activity of Morning Beauty Developments
Limited is investment holding and it directly owned
approximately 50.14% of the equity interest in
Shinyoptics as of the date of the Disposal.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 28 HEHE QT (&)
(Continued)
HK$’000
FABTT
Net assets disposed of: BHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment M - HEKREE 1,158
Intangible assets EmRAE 8,959
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESHEE 1,184
Inventories 5B 1,752
Trade and other receivables JE L BR SR K E A BB SR 755
Fixed deposits with original maturity date REHEBRBE=EAZ
more than three months E HTF 3K 13,577
Cash and cash equivalents e kBE2EEYD 6,223
Trade and other payables & A~ BR 30 N E A FE S 3R (893)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTISH AE (415)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 R 4 2 (12,854)
19,446
Revaluation reserve EhHEE 55
Exchange reserve M 5 2,018
21,519
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 7) & B A R =
(Bt 5t7) 26,481
48,000
An analysis of the net cash inflow in respect of LEWBARIMNERSRA
the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: HEMAT
Cash consideration HeRE 48,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of ERERSRRASEED (6,223)
Net cash inflow in respect HENRBARNERE
of disposal of subsidiaries A FER 4,777
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 MEIRS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant
influence.

W—T A ERKEEREH ST HAHS
—TEHVBRREERREBEATE
AT WG REET - X AREH
KHARABERFEETBREES -
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year.

(a)  The directors of the Company are of the view
that the following company that had
transactions with the Group is a related party:

Name

=x

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 BERIRZ(HE)

BRUEMBREREMBOWEEIN A%
BRAFEANTHBETETZIRS -

@ ARREZRA UTRAREARE
BETRZMEET:

Relationship with the Group
AR EEER

Earn Master Limited
Earn Master Limited

(b) Transactions with a related party

A related company wholly owned by the spouse of Mr. Cheng

HEEENEB2ERBNEYR QR

(b) HBEEITNXRS

2016 2015
N — T aOfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Rental expense paid to Earn Master 3 fifEarn Master
Limited Limited #9 18 € F < 544 816
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, RRRIEERE  ZERHNIERES

the transaction was determined at mutually
agreed prices and terms.
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PSP LETE:
29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 BERXRZ(#A)
(Continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (c HBEEFNER
() Loan from a shareholder 0 BREEHX
2016 2015
= _—_T—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FH T
At 1 January Kn—H—H = 27,769
Loans advanced during the year F R K E X = 1,580
Loans waived during the year RIEZ R FERNRRH
pursuant to the Agreement Bk (H#2.1.1)
(Note 2.1.1) — (29,349)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H = =
The above balance arose from the loan Ll SRR AR M B B TR K
advanced from Mr. Cheng to Perfect AT BB 5% A= [m) (B M BT B B 3K o
Shiny before the completion of the REBRAEERR B REBA
Acquisition. The balance was unsecured, R—FAEE - BEERUE
interest-free and not repayable within one EFEHEKERERRERLD
year. Mr. Cheng waived the 29,349,000/ 7T - 7F 15 & MY
shareholder’s loan of approximately F211 ¢

HK$29,349,000 upon completion of the
Acquisition as detailed in Note 2.1.1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FeMBRERME

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29
(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued)

(i)~ Note payable

BELXS(E)

) HBELTWERA

i) ENRE

2015
—T—hF
HK$'000
FHE T
Promissory note payable to FEASF BB A A A H ZE 4
Mr. Cheng 10,000 20,000
Offset against the compensation 1 $ % Kl 4R 75 &= &£ 2 J&
receivable arising from the Profit W @ (€ X IE
Guarantee (10,000) —
= 20,000
Less: Portion classified under B AERB BER S
current liabilities = (10,000)
Non-current portion FERBI D — 10,000

Pursuant to the Agreement, promissory
note in favour of Mr. Cheng in the
amount of HK$20,000,000 was issued as
part of the consideration of the
Acquisition (Note 2.1.1). The promissory
note was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable in two equal portions in the
amount of HK$10,000,000 each on 30
April 2016 and on 30 April 2017,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the remaining
promissory note was offset against the
compensation receivable arising from the
Profit Guarantee. Further details of the
Profit Guarantee are set out in Note
2.1.1.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016

RIBEZWE - WBEERK R
A Z #2 %8 7$20,000,000% 7T 2
EARBIERBESRZAE
— WMo B EET(ME21.1) -
ZEREBERERM R8N
BARRNR_FE—RFOA=F
Ak=ZFE—+FMHA=1+THEI
M 28 % ¥8 5 1510,000,0007% 7T
fEE -

R—E—A"F+_RA=+—H"
BRI A Z R R M IRE E &
2 FEN A ERIEFHESE o BT
RBEZE—TFHBHINERM T
211 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

©

Balances with related parties (Continued)
(i) Receivable from Mr. Cheng

The amount represented the outstanding
balance of the Profit Guarantee
compensation due from Mr. Cheng and
is unsecured, interest-free, and expected

GeMBRRME

29 BERIRZ(A)

©

EA BRI 5 WY 4 6 (48)
(i) JEH BT A LR

% BRI 5 B BB S A 2 g R
REMEZ RTS8 BEE
R REREHER-_F—t
FZA=+—HZFIEE (K

to be settled on or before 31 March F£24.1) °
2017 (Note 2.1.1).
Key management compensation d FEEBASHMH
Key management includes directors and senior FTEEREAEBEREESRaRER
management. The compensation paid or B -BENENEAEEEEEEA
payable to key management personnel of the BRHMAT
Group is shown below:
2016 2015
—E—REF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET T
Short-term employee benefits HHEEREF 9,164 8,759
Post-employment benefits 1 B R IK1E A
— defined contribution plans — TEREMH RS 54 60
9,218 8,819

B xXXEAR®2A 2016 £RH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FeMBRERME

30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 30
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY

(@ Statement of financial position of the

NN T BB B AR O R K A
25

@@ A2AWHBRR =T

Company
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2015
—ET—RF
Note HK$’000
B 5 FAET
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries HBARMKEE 525,657 525,657
Intangible assets EEE 3,122 3,122
528,779 528,779
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b & YT 3K 158 305
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U B B A &l Z B 113,159 99,257
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 5,229 4,357
118,546 103,919
Total assets EEHAR 647,325 632,698
Equity and liabilities EEREE
Equity attributable to equity EATEZEEA
holders of the Company FE 15 #E =
Share capital f& A 14,837 14,837
Reserves Gkl (o) 631,392 617,390
Total equity EREEE 646,229 632,227
Liabilities =i |
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables H fh FE 1S 3R 1,096 471
Total liabilities EEHAE 1,096 471
Total equity and liabilities Rk EERAE 647,325 632,698

The statement of financial position of the
Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 20 March 2017 and was signed

ARBWHBRRARER T — L5
“A-tEBESEHE  UKKRE
EERE -

on its behalf.

Cheng Wai Tak Tse Ka Wing
Director Director
mEE S

£ EZE

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserves movement of the Company

GeMBRRME

30 ARNF MM BN R KB
28 (E)

(b) AATNREELH

Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus  earnings Total

ROBEE HBARE BEKRSE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET TET
(Note)
(Bt %)

At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—ARF
—HA—H

Profit for the year FEFH

Issue of new shares as #1T# I 1EA KA
consideration for ZH & RE
common control (K1:t2.1.1)
combination
(Note 2.1.1)

Dividends paid relating —Z—P4E >
to 2014 EATER B

77,800 136,082 13,330 227,212
- — 9,658 9,658

387,938 — — 387,938

— — (7,418) (7,418)

At 31 December 2015 RWK_-_ZT—FHF
and 1 January 2016 +=—A=+—H8xK

—E—RF
—HB—H 465,738 136,082 15,570 617,390
Profit for the year FEFHE = = 21,420 21,420
Dividends paid relating —Z—HF 2
to 2015 ERRE = = (7,418) (7,418)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—R4F
+=-—A=+—H 465,738 136,082 29,572 631,392

Note: Contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between excess of the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued and the aggregate
net asset value at the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to a reorganisation for the listing of the
Company.

Bt ARARZBABBRRARAEEITE
PHEERBBEA/ARRR EHMETZE
MU S 2 BB AR 2 & B E A
ZHBHER -

BXXEBEHER-XAF 2016 F ;K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FeMBRERME

31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 31 EBEZEMNEES
DIRECTORS
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EBTRTHARZZHE
The remuneration of every director and the BSEERTHEBZE 2HMBT :
chief executive is set out below:
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries, to a
allowances retirement
and benefits Discretionary benefit
Fees in kind bonuses scheme Total
EExY
2= B REF

e REWEAN BERAL  STEHN #at
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THTT TAT THT THIL  TAT

For the year ended HEZZ—RF

31 December 2016 TZA=+—-HLtFE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chief Executive) S8 (& 1E £ (7T B 44 %) = 5,159 1,050 18 6,227
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BRREE — 636 159 18 813
Mr. Tse Ka Wing (Note (i) MR KL aF() = 1,440 360 18 1,818

Independent non-executive directors: B EHTTEE -

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John BEERAE 120 — — — 120

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu BEEBEE 120 = = = 120

Mr. Li Shui Yan FIHBEE 120 = — - 120
360 7,235 1,569 54 9,218

For the year ended HE-_T-—1F

31 December 2015 TZA=+—HILFE

Executive directors: HITEE:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Chief Executive) 882 & 56 4 (7T B #8 #) = 5,016 700 18 5734

Mr. Liu Ka Wing BRRELE = 636 159 18 813

Mr. Tse Ka Wing (Note (i) HR L 2(0) = 1,103 277 14 1,394

Mr. Cheng Cheung Wai (Note (i) 8 & {8 5% & (A7 2t (i) = 128 = 6 134

Independent non-executive directors: B EHTTEE -

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John BEERAE 120 = = = 120

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu ERBLE 120 = — — 120

Mr. Li Shui Yan TR EE 120 = = = 120
360 6,883 1,136 56 8,435

Notes: Bt -

(i) Appointed on 26 March 2015 0] RZZF—RAF=A=-+BEZE

(ii) Retired on 8 May 2015 (ii) R=ZF—RFAA/N\BRE

No directors waived or agreed to waive any MEEENFANERRAEREE

emoluments during the year (2015: Nil). e (ZE—hF: &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continueqd)

(b)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors of the Company received
or will receive any retirement benefits or
termination benefits for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company does not pay consideration to third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2015: Nil).

Information about quasi-loans and
other dealings of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

loans,
in favour

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors or
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year
(2015: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

GeMBRRME

31 EFZEAMRER(HE)

(b)

EERARBANRRILERER

REBEE-_FT-—A"F+-_A=+—HL
FE - BEARTE S WEEGRUER
ERABENRELLEEBREN (=T
—hF:E) e

RRHUEEESRBFAF=FEMH 2K
&

REE=F—AFT=A=t+—AL
FEARTLERREEERE 2
HREFE=H(CE—0%: 8-

FRUESE ZTESRFZEER
HEENABEEAZEZAZER
RERRHMRZZ2EHR

RERKFATMER  HEEH
REF REFEG 2AEREZ
FEFNHEBBEBRARSAZER
REFRREMRZGZH (ZF—RF:
&) -

EERRE  REISHMWEK
=

MRERIFRNEMER - RREH
TR & it 5 PR B & SN - &
ARAEEXERcEMEARS &
FEREBRHUARRR B —RETH I R
NEEEHEAEA R (TREEK
M) o

BXXEBEHER-XAF 2016 F ;K

183



184

Financial Summary

B E

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—-HLEE

AEERBELBVBRFENREAREE A
EARFFEEEEME(RBEEETIREERY
BH|KR) 5T :

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ST 1F T OF T =F T =F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAxT FE T T T FH& T
Results ES
Revenue WA 1,149,998 1,274174 1,299,495 1,669,556 1,382,583
Profit for the year attributable to: 4FEFE 5B R :
Equity holders of the Company N2 &) #E 28
BFEA 90,729 27,732 26,148 71,099 35,193
Non-controlling interests FE 12 IR = (2,394) (2,290) (975) — —
88,335 25,442 25,173 71,099 35,193
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
= Lt — TR —T-—WNF —T-—=F —ZT-—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET FHET FHET FHET
Assets, liabilities and EE -&8fE
non-controlling interests RFELRER
Total assets EEBE 502,122 496,002 423,296 387,252 347,107
Total liabilities BEeE (152,163)  (216,273)  (166,159)  (244,651)  (249,455)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 = (15,248) (18,326) = =
349,959 264,481 238,811 142,601 97,652

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2016
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